1

ember 2014
4
9 Septe
The Ho
on. Gordon Rich-Phillip
R
s MLC
Ministerr for Techno
ology
Departm
ment of Treasury and Finance
F
1 Maca
arthur Streett
Melbourne Vic 300
02
Dear Minister
CENITE
EX ANNUA
AL REPORT
T
I am ple
eased to submit the 20
013-14 Annu
ual Report of
o CenITex,, including tthe Financia
al
Stateme
ents for the
e year ended
d 30 June 2
2014, for pre
esentation to
t Parliameent, pursuan
nt to Part 7
of the F
Financial Ma
anagement Act 1994.
Yours ssincerely

Randalll Straw
Chairman

2

Our vision
A connected and ICT-enabled public sector.

Our mission
To broker, provide and manage ICT services for the public sector that best enable the delivery
of responsive and cost-effective services to the people of Victoria.

How we work
CenITex is committed to placing the customer at the centre of everything we do, and this
underpins our behaviour and decision making.

This means we strive to be:
Customer focused







Listen and respond
Make it easy to do business
Keep our customers informed
Be open in our dealings
Provide value for money

Results driven






Deliver services the customer needs
Create innovative solutions
Deliver on our promises
Measure our performance and act on the results

Team players




Collaborate and share information
Value the giving and receiving of constructive feedback

People oriented






Be accountable for our actions
Respect people and their contributions
Maintain professional behaviour at all levels
Embrace our diversity
Understand that our services affect people’s working lives
every day
Behave ethically in all that we do
Speak plainly with each other and our customers
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1 Ch
hairma
an’s Re
eport
The passt 12 month
hs has seen
n CenITex m
maintain qua
ality ICT services durinng a period of
significa
ant change and cost co
ontainment..
CenITe
ex realised a $7 million turnaround
d to break ev
ven this yea
ar after recoording succ
cessive
deficits of $37.5 million and $6
6.995 millio
on in the pre
evious two financial
f
yeaars. At the same
s
time,
service benchmarkks were maintained an d investment made in remediatingg aged infra
astructure
that rep
presented th
he highest risk
r to mainttaining serv
vice levels.
The con
ntinued con
nsolidation of
o core ICT services an
nd the transition of morre Victorian
Government deparrtment custo
omers to a shared ope
erating envirronment haas enabled CenITex
C
to
position
n its custom
mers to take advantage of more co
ost effective business aapplications and
servicess.
CenITe
ex began the
e migration of the Depa
artment of Transport,
T
Planning
P
annd Local Infrrastructure
and the
e Departmen
nt of Enviro
onment and Primary Ind
dustries to Windows
W
7.. CenITex now
n
has
five dep
partments operating
o
on
n the Goverrnment Shared Platform
m and the ccapability to expand
the use
e of cloud-ba
ased services. The intrroduction off a more rob
bust mail annd calendarr
applicattion for sma
artphones and
a tablets p
paves the way
w for new mobility seervices in the future.
During the past financial year CenITex th
hrough Prog
gram Evolve
e made signnificant prog
gress in
preparin
ng to transittion the delivery of its IICT infrastru
ucture services to the pprivate secttor. We
held extensive diallogue with potential
p
ve ndors and customers
c
to
t help shappe a Reque
est for
Proposa
al (RFP). Responsibilit
R
ty for manag
ging the RF
FP process now passess to the Department off
State D
Developmen
nt, Business
s and Industtry (DSDBI)).
These a
achievemen
nts in challe
enging timess highlight the
t capabilitties and deddication of CenITex
staff. I tthank all forr their profes
ssionalism and resilien
nce during this time.
CenITe
ex will aim to
o continue to
t deliver hi gh quality, efficient ICT
T services inn a cost-efffective
mannerr while supp
porting DSD
DBI and ourr staff during
g the chang
ges ahead.

Randalll Straw
Chairman
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2 Chief Executive’s Report
Over the past 12 months CenITex has continued to deliver high-quality ICT services while
successfully responding to a challenging financial environment and positioning the organisation
to transition the delivery of ICT services to the private sector.
CenITex broke even this year realising a $7 million turnaround through stringent cost control
and the hard work of our managers and staff.
Our people have shown tremendous resilience during a period of intense change and have
continued to operate effectively to maintain the quality and cost effectiveness of our services.
Their efforts deserve special mention.
In 2013-14 we again met our service benchmark of 99.8 per cent availability for our workplace
and application hosting services, we saw a reduction of 20 per cent in the number of “severity
1” outages and again achieved a high level of satisfaction across our customers who engaged
with our Service Desk or second level support.
We made significant progress through Program Evolve in the planned transition of CenITex
services to the private sector on behalf of our customers. We successfully completed an
Expression of Interest and held collaborative dialogue with vendors and customers, which gave
us a much deeper understanding of how best to ask the market for the services we deliver to
our customers. The feedback has informed the preparation of a Request for Proposal (RFP).
To enable a clear separation between CenITex's current responsibilities for ongoing service
delivery and outsourcing these services, Program Evolve will move organisationally from under
the CenITex Board to the Department of State Development, Business and Industry (DSDBI) as
of 1 July 2014. The Victorian Government, in May 2014, announced the allocation of $6 million
within the Victorian Budget 2014-15 to DSDBI to finalise the RFP process. We expect that the
RFP will be issued in the coming financial year and that CenITex will start transition in 2015.

Infrastructure Improvement
A key factor in our delivery against agreed service levels has been an aggressive focus on risk
management and a targeting of infrastructure refresh investment in those areas that risk
assessment identified as most relevant for service availability and customer satisfaction. In the
past year, we implemented major core network, data centre and other infrastructure
improvements which better support our customers’ ICT needs, including:






consolidation of all legacy storage area networks (SAN) within the Government Shared
Platform (GSP) onto a NetApp platform, marking the culmination of two year’s work with
over a petabyte of storage migrated and consolidated to a single vendor platform.
upgrading of our Burwood and Ballarat data centres to include new infrastructure, firewalls,
switches and load balancers.
consolidation of VicGov identity management infrastructure, simplifying directory
architecture and significantly reducing operational costs through the removal of 82 servers.
introduction of a new self-service network password reset service to enable users to reset
their passwords without having to contact our Service Desk.
migration of over 2500 GSP customers from the mSuite mobility solution for smartphones
and tablets to the better integrated and cost effective Traveler solution.
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In other major outcomes, we:
•

now have five Victorian Government department customers on the GSP.

•

insourced, consolidated and standardised technologies over the past two and a half years
which now deliver recurring savings or avoided costs of $10 million per annum.

•

completed the refresh of core switches at our two main data centres in Burwood and
Ballarat.

•

finalised major machinery of government changes, completing the relocation of 1100 staff
to new department offices and the migration of staff desktops to new departmental desktop
environments.

•

successfully completed Program Evolve’s Expression of Interest and Collaborative
Dialogue phases of the procurement process to transition CenITex’s delivery of ICT
services to Victorian Government departments to the private sector; prepared the RFP and
draft contract for review, and developed a draft Target State Operating Model.

Customer initiatives
We finalised 384 projects during the year for a total value of $10.8 million. Some of our
significant customer projects included:
•

completion of planning and design phases for migration of the Department of Transport,
Planning & Local Infrastructure desktop environment from Windows XP to a single
Windows 7 Standard Operating Environment (SOE).

•

major upgrade of the directory services server to Windows Server 2012 for the Department
of Justice, including the design and installation of new infrastructure; and successful
deployment of a Lotus Notes upgrade to all departmental users.

•

extension of the Department of Environment and Primary Industries user identity
management process to the GSP by transferring an Active Directory service and an Active
Directory Federation service to the GSP.

•

supported the Department of Human Services to develop an infrastructure platform for the
planned upgrade of the department’s Integrated Client and Case Management system,
which supports the department’s child protection activities.

Staff
In 2013-14 we continued to build capabilities across the organisation and develop staff skills
through training and development courses. In addition to online training programs, courses
covering management development, workplace effectiveness, team building, specialist
technical areas and occupational health and safety attracted a total of 430 employees. An
externally delivered employee assistance program was also available to staff.
I would like to recognise the professionalism and resilience shown by our people during the past
year. It has been a period of significant change and they have responded in a manner which
you would expect of people who take deep pride in delivering quality services to their customers
and ultimately the Victorian community.
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Financial Outcome
The 2013-14 year has been financially challenging but successful.
Earnings before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) were $22.3 million, representing a
$5.4 million improvement on 2012-13. The result was achieved despite a fall in revenue caused,
in the main, by a reduction in our customer base of more than 2700 desktops (7.9 per cent).
Importantly, we met budget.
This year we continued to implement and strengthen our financial controls and accountability,
particularly in relation to procurement and recruitment.

Outlook
Our goal is to successfully transition CenITex services to the private sector on behalf of
customers while maintaining the stability of our services, ensuring financial solvency and
supporting our people through the transition process.
Our Chairman, Grant Hehir, stepped down this year, briefly replaced by Victoria’s Chief
Technology Advocate Grantly Mailes. Mr Mailes handed over the Chair to Randall Straw who
was joined on our Board by Dr Richard Tait, Conrad Harvey and Johanna Barker. The
organisation is well served by the collective experience of the Board.
I sincerely thank management and staff for delivering services to such a high level and so
consistently in 2013-14. Their work to meet customer expectations while managing major
changes is as impressive as it is successful. My thanks also to our customers for their on-going
support.
The coming year will continue to be one of significant challenge, but I am confident that we will
maintain our high standard of day-to-day services while we successfully transition these
services to the private sector. I look forward to working with staff and customers to deliver these
important outcomes.

Michael Vanderheide
Chief Executive
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3 About CenITex
3.1 CenITex overview
CenITex, an information and communications technology (ICT) shared services agency, was
created on 16 July 2008 as a state-owned enterprise with the aim of providing Victorian
Government departments and agencies with integrated and reliable infrastructure and desktop
services in ICT.
The Victorian Government ICT Strategy 2013-14 marked a significant shift in the delivery of ICT
services to government departments, many of whom have relied on CenITex as their internal
provider of these services for the past six years. Program Evolve was established to enable
CenITex to outsource its current range of services.
As at April 2014, Program Evolve had successfully completed the Expression of Interest and
Collaborative Dialogue phases of the procurement process, prepared the Request for Proposal
(RFP) and draft contract for review, and developed a draft Target State Operating model.
To enable a clear separation between CenITex's current responsibilities for ongoing service
delivery and the focus on outsourcing these services, Program Evolve on 1 July 2014 will move
organisationally from under the CenITex board to the Department of State Development,
Business and Industry (DSDBI).
The Victorian Government, in May 2014, announced the allocation of $6 million within the
Victorian Budget 2014-15 to DSDBI to finalise the RFP process. This process is the next stage
and it is expected that CenITex would start transition in 2015.
The goal of CenITex now is to successfully transition CenITex services to the private sector on
behalf of its customers. While this transition occurs, we will continue to provide current services
to our customers.
Key metrics (as at 30 June 2014)
Revenue – $151.3 million
Desktops supported – 31,575
Staff – 546 (headcount, includes nine contractors)
What we deliver
CenITex provides the following range of services.
Workplace services, including:






desktop services
file and print services
email and diary services
personal productivity applications
internet access services.

Hosting services, including:





application hosting
storage and backup
restore and disaster recovery
data base and application server management.
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Professional services (customer funded projects), including:



project management
solution design and build.

CenITex also supplies identity and access management, ICT security services, personnel onboarding and off-boarding, and directory services.
Our scope
As at 30 June 2014 CenITex provides common ICT infrastructure and desktop services across
the following eight Victorian government departments and their portfolio agencies, as well as
four major agencies:













Department of Environment and Primary Industries (DEPI)
Department of Health (DH)
Department of Human Services (DHS)
Department of Justice (DOJ)
Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC)
Department of State Development, Business and Innovation (DSDBI)
Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure (DTPLI)
Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF)
Public Transport Victoria (PTV)
Victorian Ombudsman
VicForests
Environment Protection Authority.
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4 Governance & Organisational Structure
4.1 Our Governance
CenITex is governed by accountability frameworks that bring clarity to our decision making.
As we provide commercially oriented ICT services, we recognise that our relationship with our
customers must be based on sound, commercially oriented arrangements. Our service-level
agreements and memoranda of understanding are underpinned by a Customer Service
Catalogue and transparent prices.
The formal governance role is assigned to the CenITex board, comprising Randall Straw as
chairman, Dr Richard Tait, Conrad Harvey and Johanna Barker.
Operational responsibility is assigned to the CenITex Executive Leadership Team. These roles
are supported by a number of operational and advisory groups, some of which have
departmental representation.
During the financial year 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 persons who held the positions of
Minister and accountable officer responsible for CenITex were:



The Minister for Technology, the Hon. Gordon Rich-Phillips MLC.
Chief Executive, Michael Vanderheide.

4.2 Relationship to the Minister
The Victorian Government Minister responsible for CenITex is the Minister for Technology.
It is the responsibility of the board to advise the Minister directly in relation to all matters falling
within the Minister’s areas of responsibility as they relate to CenITex.

4.3 Board of Directors
The Chairman of CenITex is Randall Straw, appointed to the board on 17 December 2013 for
two years and appointed Chair on 9 April 2014. He has over 30 years’ experience in
government ICT, formerly serving as Deputy Secretary of Innovation and Technology at the
then-Department of Business and Innovation and prior to that as Executive Director Multimedia
Victoria and a range of other ICT and technology related positions. He has extensive knowledge
of and experience in the management of large scale ICT and technology related reform projects
in government.
Dr Richard Tait, appointed to the board on 17 December 2013 for two years, is one of
Australia’s most experienced information technology executives, having served in a range of
strategically important Chief Technologist and Chief Information Officer roles, including
Goldman Sachs JB Were and the ANZ Bank. He is a recognised authority on the delivery of
major transformation programs and risk management. He is Managing Director and principal
consultant of Aquitaine Consulting.
Conrad Harvey, appointed to the board on 17 December 2013 for two years, brings a wealth of
experience in the innovative use of ICT in service delivery. He is currently Group General
Manager of Coles, where he has led the transformation of service delivery through information
technology and digital delivery channels. Conrad is also a member of the Victorian ICT Advisory
Committee, where his strategic insights and industry knowledge are highly valued.
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Johanna Barker, appointed to the board on 8 April 2014 for 21 months, has extensive
corporate, banking and IT management experience, in particular in the establishment and
management of shared services. Johanna (Joh) is a former executive manager of the ANZ
Bank and has held senior finance, IT and business positions at SMS Ltd and IBM. She is also a
former member of the Victorian Government Shared Services Advisory Board.
Former Board of Directors.
Grant Hehir (Chair, resigned from the board effective as of 9 October 2013).
Grantly Mailes (appointed Chair on 9 October 2013 with a further three month appointment
that commenced on 9 January 2014 and concluded on 9 April 2014).
Board meetings
There were 10 board meetings during 2013–14.
Director

Number of meetings
attended

Number of meetings eligible to
attend

Grant Hehir (Chairman)

2

2

Grantly Mailes (Chairman)

5

5

Randall Straw (Chairman)

6

6

Dr Richard Tait

6

6

Conrad Harvey

4

6

Johanna Barker

3

3

4.3.1 CenITex governance – committees
Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee is a standing committee reporting to the CenITex board. Its
purpose is to assist the board to fulfil responsibilities relating to:






the integrity and quality of CenITex’s financial reporting and disclosures
the adequacy of internal control framework that CenITex uses to identify and manage key
business, financial, fraud and regulatory risks
the external auditor’s annual audit of CenITex’s financial statements
CenITex’s compliance with relevant laws, regulations, standards and codes
The Audit and Risk Committee consists of four non-executive members who are
independent of CenITex management.

Audit and Risk Committee membership
Graeme Bowker (Chair, resigned after 16 August 2013 meeting)
Sue Carter (Chair, joined immediately before 16 August 2013 meeting and ceased as Chair at
14 April 2014 meeting)
Dr Richard Tait (Chair, joined immediately before 20 January 2014 meeting, and commenced
as Chair at 14 April 2014 meeting)
Peter Goddard
John Craven
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Audit and Risk Committee meetings
There were four meetings during the year.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is a standing committee of the CenITex board. The primary role
of the committee includes establishing and maintaining the Remuneration and Employment
Policy, providing recommendations for the annual remuneration review, remuneration
compliance and selection, and appointment of the CenITex Chief Executive. Membership of the
Remuneration Committee includes board representation.
Remuneration Committee membership
Grant Hehir (Chair, resigned from the Committee on 25 October 2013)
Grantly Mailes (Chair, appointed to the Committee on 9 October 2013 and concluded on 9 April
2014)
Randall Straw (Chair, appointed to the Committee on 17 December 2013 and as Chair on 6
February 2014)
Remuneration Committee meetings
There were two meetings during the year.

4.4 Organisational Structure
CenITex is arranged in five key streams:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Customer Engagement
Project Delivery and Architecture
Service Operations
Strategy Coordination
Corporate Support.

The five stream leaders, the chief financial officer and the manager of organisational change
make up the Executive Leadership Team (ELT), together with the Chief Executive, to whom the
members report.
A forum known as the CenITex Leadership Group is made up of ELT members and their direct
reports who are also senior managers. It meets monthly to review and discuss key performance
and strategic issues and lead key organisation-wide initiatives.

4.5 Executive Leadership Team Key Roles and Responsibilities
Chief Executive – Michael Vanderheide





Advises the board on establishment and implementation of a strategy for CenITex and
delivers the agreed strategy.
Ensures that the necessary people, processes and systems are in place to deliver
infrastructure, network, operating system projects and upgrades across the customer
departments.
Engages with senior customer stakeholders and industry representatives.
Provides leadership to the CenITex organisation and builds a constructive and serviceoriented culture.
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Director Customer Engagement – Bill Diamond




Serves as the key interface between CenITex and its customers.
Responsible for account management, service level agreements, service catalogue and
customer communications.
Responsible for service desk*, request fulfilment, and incident and problem management
services. (*Responsibility for service desk moved to Service Operations in May 2014)

Director Project Delivery and Architecture – Edel David (Acting Director, resigned effective
on 16 May 2014). Project Delivery and Architecture is now part of Service Operations under
Service Transition and Improvement Services as a result of the Resourcing Initiative
implemented in June 2014.




Serves as the key project interface between CenITex and our customers.
Provides program and project support management for customer and internal business
projects.
Includes the project management office, and architecture and design function.

Director Service Operations – Peter Bon
Coordinates and carries out day-to-day activities to deliver and manage services to agreed
levels, including:






infrastructure services
workplace services
technical support services
operational security
service acceptance and improvement.

Director Strategy Coordination – Mike Delaney





Coordinates and manages business strategy, business trends and strategic research.
Manages corporate communications and liaison.
Provides business and customer reporting.
Provides board support, legal services, and risk and compliance services.

Director Corporate Support – Isabel Frederick (appointed Program Director for Program
Evolve in June 2013). Andrew Prestage (Acting Director from June 2013 until he resigned from
CenITex effective on 30 April 2014).
Partners with the business to achieve organisational objectives through the effective
management of:





human resources
finance
procurement
information and systems.

Chief Financial Officer – Catherine Ho
Responsible for:






financial analysis and reporting
cash management
asset management
budgeting and financial modelling
accommodation services.
15

Manager Organisational Change – Julie-Ann Zajac.
Responsible for:




leading the development of a performance-driven culture, including strategies that reinforce
CenITex values and behavioural expectations
developing and implementing appropriate employee engagement strategies and
measurement tools
working closely with other departments to ensure alignment between organisational change
strategies and specific initiatives.
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5 Our Customers
In 2013-14, CenITex continued its focus on maintaining high levels of customer service. This is
central to CenITex effectively serving Victorian government departments and state agencies
and continuing to deliver reliable, responsive ICT services.

5.1 Customer Committee
Stakeholder Advisory Committee
The Stakeholder Advisory Committee (SAC) ensures that strong and open relationships
between CenITex and its customers are built and maintained at a senior management level.
This committee is a key forum for CenITex customer departments to raise issues of concern or
initiate advice that may be considered by the CenITex board and management.
The SAC provides a forum for customer departments to discuss collectively all generic service
provisioning in relation to:





future strategic direction
new services
the CenITex service catalogue
pricing and service levels.

SAC membership
CenITex Chief Executive – Michael Vanderheide
CenITex Director Customer Engagement – Bill Diamond
Relevant departmental senior ICT executives or CIOs.
SAC meetings
There were five meetings during the year. SAC meetings were supplemented with numerous
additional meetings, comprised of the same membership, and focused on Program Evolve.

5.2 Machinery-of-Government Changes (MoG)


On 9 April 2013, the Victorian Government announced a new structure which came into
effect on 1 July 2013. CenITex provided ICT support to the establishment of three new
departments involving a number of CenITex customers. Finalisation of MoG changes
during 2013-14 included the relocation of 2000 workstations.

5.3 Engaging new customers
We completed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with DSDBI to move the department
onto the Customer Service Catalogue, providing DSDBI with a single source of information
about service deliverables and price, while simplifying invoicing and standardising resource
allocation.
In light of the strategy to transition CenITex customer services to the private sector, no new
customers were engaged in 2013-14.
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5.4 Customer Service Improvements
Account management
The account management team supported the development and delivery of customer roadmap
plans for each of our customers, outlining key projects, and mapping dependencies within each
customer’s project activity list and with other customer projects.
Customer satisfaction
CenITex uses the QuickPoll customer survey tool to gather customer feedback, improve
customer response and support technical and service analysts. Over the past year, the
customer satisfaction rating has consistently exceeded the key performance indicator (KPI) of
95 per cent (combining both positive and neutral scores). Customer satisfaction across all
Service Operations teams averaged 89 per cent positive, nine per cent neutral, and two per
cent negative. The Service Desk was added to the QuickPoll survey tool in November 2013,
increasing the average survey response to 1500 users a month.
ICT improvements
Customers have benefitted from improvement and upgrades in essential ICT infrastructure that
have allowed us to improve our customer service and reduce our costs. Improvement to our
network and data centres has included:






migration of over 2500 Government Shared Platform (GSP) customers from mSuite
mobility solution to the better integrated and cost effective Traveler solution.
consolidation of all legacy storage area networks (SAN) within the GSP onto a NetApp
platform. It marked the end of a two year journey that has seen over a petabyte of storage
migrated and consolidated to a single vendor platform.
upgrade of two enterprise data centres to include new infrastructure, firewalls, switches and
load balancers.
consolidated VicGov identity management infrastructure, simplifying directory architecture
and significantly reducing operational costs through the removal of 82 servers.
introduction of a new self-service network password reset service to enable users to reset
their passwords without having to contact the Service Desk.

5.5 New Customer Projects
In 2013–14 we delivered a number of major projects that support customers. Specifically we:







extended DEPI’s user identity management process to the GSP by transferring an Active
Directory service and an Active Directory Federation service to GSP. This enabled external
and internal user authentication to Line of Business applications.
supported the Department of Human Services (DHS) in developing an infrastructure
platform for the planned upgrade of the DHS Integrated Client and Case Management
system at the primary data centre at Burwood and the secondary data centre in Ballarat.
ICCMS is a critical 24 x 7 business application that supports the Department’s child
protection activities.
migrated a critical Land Victoria (LV) imaging system which helps LV manage Victorian
land administration and property information. The project consolidated the system and
other critical systems onto existing hardware and established a disaster recovery
environment at Ballarat. This service is co-managed by CenITex and LV.
designed and deployed the technical infrastructure environment for the Department of
Justice to better utilise a human resources payroll application, Chris21, to process the
payroll for 7000 employees.
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upgraded the data communications network to 10 regional research centres for DEPI,
which conducts significant research to improve the productivity of Victoria's agricultural
industries. This program has provisioned a dedicated computer network for specialist
scientific equipment, increased the network connection speeds and enhanced the network
functionality.

5.6 Customer Service Catalogue
CenITex is committed to providing customers with high-quality ICT services and transparent
charging. To support this commitment, a Customer Service Catalogue is published at the start
of every financial year. It features all products and services, corporate service levels and pricing
available to customers, and guidance on how to obtain these services.
CenITex continued to improve its Customer Service Catalogue in 2013-14. After extension
discussions, DSDBI transitioned onto the service catalogue, which also services DTPLI, DEPI,
departments of Premier and Cabinet, Treasury and Finance, and their associated agencies, and
the Environment Protection Authority, and Public Transport Victoria.
CenITex has continued its year-on-year refinement of the catalogue to provide additional
information for customers and ensure the document is even easier to browse. The current
catalogue, released on 1 July 2013, has boosted the level of data and information on CenITex
core services.
New features introduced to the 2013–14 catalogue were:





upgrade of the mSuite smartphone and tablet service environment to the cheaper and
better integrated Traveler service. The mSuite service was discontinued on 30 June 2014.
introduction of Microsoft OS Windows7 64-bit workplace option to complement the 32-bit
option.
the Service Centre Business System Management service, and
a new network load balancing service and associated pricing.

The catalogue provides customers with a single source of information about service
deliverables.
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5.7 Outlook for 2014-15
Consistent with the Victorian Government ICT Strategy 2014-15, and in the context of ensuring
financial solvency during the transition of CenITex, our focus will be on maintaining the stability
of current services for our customers.
CenITex will continue to leverage the ICT platform developed over the past six years to meet
the needs of our customer departments and agencies. Given the planned transition, there will
be a limited focus on the provision of new services unless there is a critical customer need (e.g.
state emergency, bushfires etc.).
This will be done by:





maintaining our disciplined approach to service delivery
maximising stability by minimising change
continuing to address high risk priorities with a reduced focus on lower priority risks
maximising and maintaining flexibility of key third party arrangements.

CenITex will continue to review its service offering in the coming financial year to ensure that it
meets customer expectations and needs.
Further information on the outlook for CenITex is included in 8. Outlook.
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6 Our Performance
6.1 Project Delivery and Architecture
Project Delivery and Architecture is responsible for the systems architecture, project
management and project delivery functions at CenITex. It is also the sponsor of the customer
projects portfolio of work. Specifically, Project Delivery and Architecture incorporates the
following functions:




Architecture – plans and designs customer projects at a macro level, ahead of the
deployment of the projects. This includes technical design, capacity planning, and
availability planning and service continuity design.
Enterprise Project Management Office – provides project methodology, governance,
assurance and reporting services in relation to CenITex projects. This ensures that the
progress of each project is monitored and reported, from its initial approval to final delivery.
Project delivery – provides project management services for CenITex and customer
projects.

6.2 Service Operations
Victorian Government ICT operates across three infrastructure platforms, the Government
Shared Platform (GSP) that was developed as part of a Government Efficient Technology
Services (ETS) program of works that now hosts the departments of State Development,
Business and Innovation (DSDBI), Treasury and Finance (DTF), Premier and Cabinet (DPC),
Environment and Primary Industries (DEPI) and Transport Planning and Local Infrastructure
(DTPLI). The departments of Justice (DOJ), Human Services (DHS) and Health (DH) are
supported on two legacy infrastructure platforms.
The GSP is a modern ICT platform distributed across two enterprise grade data centres via a
Multiprotocol Label Switching (MPLS) network that delivers high degrees of service availability
and cost efficiencies. Operating under the Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)
service management processes, it also utilises state-of-the-art alerting and monitoring systems
to support the delivery of business application hosting and physical or virtual workplaces to
customers.
Service Operations manages day-to-day operational support for these platforms and CenITex
customers and our staff.
Service Operations comprises four groups, each run by a manager responsible for service
teams. The groups are:





Technical Support
Workplace and Business Applications
Infrastructure Services
Service Transition and Improvement
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6.2.1 Technical Support Services
The Technical Support Services group is responsible for:








event management process (transitioned to Service Transition and Improvement Services
June 2014)
monitoring and control (transitioned to Service Transition and Improvement Services June
2014)
network security and intrusion detection systems (transitioned to Infrastructure Services
June 2014)
integrated access and identity management (transitioned to Workplace and Business
Application Services June 2014)
information security management and service operations (transitioned to Infrastructure
Services June 2014)
risk management (transitioned to Service Transition and Improvement Services June 2014)
Service Desk (transitioned from Customer Engagement to Technical Support Services
October 2013)

6.2.2 Workplace and Business Applications Services
The Workplace and Business Applications Services group delivers the customer facing services
of the end user workplace and the hosting of business unit applications. It provides services in
five main areas:






business application hosting
collaboration
groupware
workplace support
workplace and technology.

This group is responsible for:







desktop support (including desktop PCs, laptops, mobile devices, landline phones, and
remote access)
database administration
internet/web management
management of customer business applications
network management for video conferencing and landline telephony
application server management.

6.2.3 Infrastructure Services
The Infrastructure Services group provides infrastructure services that underpin the workplace
and business application hosting and includes:





data centre facility services
network services
server and operating system services
storage and backup services.

This group is specifically responsible for:





server management and support
network management
storage and archive
backup and restore
22




data centre facilities management
technical aspects of printing.

6.2.4 Service Transition and Improvement Services
The Service Transition and Improvement Services group provides:






transition planning and validation
change and release management
configuration management
service planning and improvement services
problem and incident management.

6.3 Customer Engagement
The Customer Engagement team manages and nurtures relationships with customers in a
manner tailored for each organisation. Our Customer Engagement stream has two functions:



account management and service delivery
service strategy management.

6.4 Highlights and Achievements
The following is a consolidation of highlights and achievements in FY 2013-14 from Project
Delivery and Architecture, Service Operations and Customer Engagement.













completed the transition of DSDBI to the service catalogue; and migrated and upgraded the
department’s Oracle financial system.
consolidated and migrated DSDBI’s domestic and overseas mail servers onto a new
enterprise mail platform using a single cluster of three servers; and assisted in setting up a
new international branch site in Jakarta, Indonesia for DSDBI.
completed replacement of end-of-life servers for DH and DHS. Project involved migrating
50 SQL servers to a new, virtualised storage platform at Burwood and Ballarat data
centres; installed a new web sphere application server for DHS to extend the lifespan of
legacy applications; and completed production and disaster recovery for DHS storage
firmware upgrades.
supported DEPI during the 2013-14 bushfire season. The initiative included assistance in
building a new incident control centre at Seymour and connecting the Country Fire
Authority deport at Yarram to the DEPI network, on-the-ground ICT services and website
(bandwidth) support.
undertook a major upgrade of the directory services server to Windows Server 2012 for
DOJ, including design and installation of new infrastructure; and successfully deployed a
Lotus Notes upgrade to all departmental users.
introduced draw down printing technology to DTF, allowing users to print to the printer of
their choice, thereby reducing paper consumption and number of localised printers.
as a result of the Hazelwood Coal Mine fire enquiry, set up an independent response
branch incorporating multiple new staff profiles and technical operating requirements at the
request of DPC.
supported the development and delivery of customer roadmap plans for our customers,
outlining key projects, and mapping dependencies within each customer’s project activity
list and with other customer projects.
continued to improve the Customer Service Catalogue, which provides customers with a
single source of information about service deliverables.
completed Program 540 which involved a systemic review and alignment of revenue and
costs for existing service provision across all customers and services. The program
delivered a benefit to the organisation valued at over $7.4m for the year.
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a total of 823 customer projects to a total value of $12.658 million were worked on during
the year. Of those, 384 were larger projects to a value of $10.822 million and 439 were
minor projects to a value of $1.836 million.
completed the delivery of Windows 7 to the Victorian Ombudsman, DEPI and VicForests.
completed planning and design phases for migration of DTPLI desktop environment from
Windows XP to a single Windows 7 Standard Operating Environment (SOE) on the
Government Shared Platform. The scope of the DTPLI project included former DOT
departments, and staff from the former Department of Planning and Community
Development (DPCD), Land Victoria and Land Management Authority (LMA). When fully
rolled out, 2100 staff will have been aligned to the SOE. The rollout is scheduled for the
2014-15 financial year.
initiated an enterprise Contract and Contractor Management System project to provide a
Contract Management System for DOJ. CenITex was contracted to deliver servers, install
and configure them on the network, implement and associate user and group accounts,
establish an email facility, and implement departmental security policies.
completed mSuite solution implementation for DOJ to provide email and calendaring
support to mobile devices. As the environment did not have the capacity to support the
expected number of future users, CenITex procured, installed and configured three
environments (test, development, and production) and rolled out the production
environment to end users.
delivered $13.5 million worth of refresh projects remediating out of support hardware and
software operating systems and applications.
remediated 170 risks across process, security, hardware and software environments
identified by staff and formal audit processes.
completed 130 continuous service improvement initiatives identified by staff during day-today operations.
continued to deliver, on average, 99.88 per cent service availability to CenITex customers
achieved 90 per cent positive response rate (2 per cent negative, 8 per cent neutral) from
CenITex customers via weekly surveys on closed calls.
completed consolidation of all legacy storage area networks (SAN) within the Government
Shared Platform (GSP) onto a NetApp platform. It marked the end of two year’s work that
resulted in a petabyte of storage migrated and consolidated to a single vendor platform.
completed Whole of Victorian Government (WoVG) mail legacy storage platform migration
to GSP target state.
implemented tools for log management and an open source intrusion prevention system
migrated GSP customers to the Bluecoat standard for web content filtering.
upgraded Burwood and Ballarat data centres to include new infrastructure which included
firewalls, switches and load balancers.
consolidated the Collins Street level 17 satellite data centre into Burwood and Ballarat data
centres.
completed the population of the configuration management database (CMDB) with 18,000
items linked to service models.
consolidated GSP customers onto a single cloud based mail filtering service.
consolidated VicGov identity management infrastructure, simplifying directory architecture
and significantly reducing costs through the removal of 82 servers.
implemented a consolidated and centralised backup solution for DEPI state-wide regional
sites.
migrated 2500 GSP customers from mSuite to the better integrated and more cost effective
Traveler.
Service Desk, Incident and Problem Management transitioned from Customer Engagement
into Service Operations and implemented:
 shared knowledge-base for service desk analysts (SDAs)
 cross-skilling among support teams to better manage resourcing when call volumes are
heavier than normal
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 up-skilling of SDAs working in second and third level support teams
 improved transition of projects into the Service Desk, ensuring that SDAs are better
prepared to support new services being transitioned into Service Operations.
 configured monitoring and management of 2000 Windows and UNIX servers in Business
Process Performance Management (BPPM)/Patrol.
 completed builds of new v14 Entuity network monitoring tool and provisioned 1000
network devices onto the platform.
 launched new mobility solution proof of concept utilising Citrix Xenmobile which provides
secure mail, calendar, web and file sharing in a secure "bubble" on corporate and
personal devices.
 upgraded VMware tools on GSP production servers.
 upgraded HP Data Protector software (6.2.1) across all DHS backup servers.
 completed DOJ Ballarat network core switch IOS upgrades to supported releases
without incident.

Service desk performance, period ending 30 June 2014
Service

SLA

Total
number
of
contacts*

Jul13

Aug13

Sep13

Oct13

Nov13

Dec13

Jan14

Feb14

Mar14

Apr14

May14

Jun14

17,888

14,743

13,397

15,084

14,851

14,661

16,685

15,882

16,526

15,558

17,373

17,499

Calls
answered
in 30
seconds
(%)

90%

78.40
%

87.91
%

92.65
%

94.74
%

84.91
%

87.60
%

89.00
%

94.92
%

91.73
%

87.70
%

92.15
%

93.94
%

Fixed
within 2
hours (%)

70%

89.59
%

88.89
%

87.94
%

88.67
%

89.69
%

90.31
%

90.46
%

89.91
%

89.74
%

87.70
%

86.83
%

88.31
%

Key:
SLA = Service Level Agreement.
* = Number of customer contacts to Service Desk doesn’t include DH and DHS which are tracked by a nonintegrated system.

6.5 Strategy Coordination
The Strategy Coordination stream is responsible for four functions:





corporate strategy
reporting
corporate communications
legal and risk.

The team has specific accountability for:







facilitating the setting of direction across CenITex.
alignment of objectives and priorities throughout CenITex.
providing counsel to CenITex on legal and compliance matters.
delivering a robust risk management program that addresses both enterprise and
operational risk profiles with agreed mitigation strategies.
ensuring that effective communications strategies are deployed throughout the business in
support of strategic outcomes and operational business practices.
coordinating board and management performance reporting.
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providing advice and assisting with the development of options through analysis and
research
managing Freedom of Information requests, and privacy and whistleblower processes.
fostering an environment that supports effective governance via transparency and clarity of
accountabilities throughout the business.

Highlights and achievements
During the year, Strategy Coordination:




















developed our Business Plan 2014–2015.
inducted several new CenITex Board members.
contributed as members of the Strategic Procurement Group.
contributed as team members to Program Evolve in the areas of:
 program management
 strategic, legal and risk management advice
 daily management of key third party arrangements, such as the commercial advisers
 management of due diligence during the Expression of Interest and Collaborative
Dialogue process, and
 strategic communications.
supported and delivered a number of major corporate publications, including the CenITex
Annual Report 2012–13.
led and managed CenITex dealings and obligations regarding Ombudsman, Freedom of
Information, Privacy and Protected Disclosure (Whistleblower).
supported the CenITex Board and Audit and Risk Committee to facilitate delivery of specific
briefs for analysis and decision making.
maintained social media tools for internal communications and delivered nine CenITexwide online interactive live chat forums.
hosted all-staff forums, and road shows delivering regular corporate information to CenITex
employees.
monitored media and managed online, trade and mainstream media.
managed and enhanced daily, CenITex’s three websites: staff Intranet, customer insITe,
and CenITex internet.
supported the migration of the CenITex internet site to Notes 8 server by Groupware
Services.
completed a program to migrate website information to text-only format, in line with new
government website accessibility guidelines.
published the following major internal and external publications:
 CenITex Update: 47 issues of weekly online updates from the Chief Executive, providing
staff and key stakeholders with latest news and information on organisational progress
 CenITex Notes: 13 issues of an online staff newsletter. Notes look at CenITex activities
behind the scenes, focusing on our people.
implemented a Service Assurance Program providing a tailored testing approach using
best practice control assertion statements.
implemented a defined process to manage audit risks and implement detailed reporting to
track remediation of audit concerns.
delivered the Internal Audit Program.
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6.6 Corporate Support
Corporate Support manages CenITex’s internal operations and includes the following functions:






Human Resources
Finance Services
Chief Information Office
Procurement Services.

6.6.1 Human Resources
The Human Resources team’s core areas of focus are:










strategic people planning
organisational development, including values and culture
capability development, including learning and development, management and leadership
development
workforce planning, recruitment and staff movement
performance, reward and recognition
occupational health and safety, and employee wellbeing
people management policies and procedures
entitlement management (including payroll)
industrial relations.

Highlights and achievements
During the year, Human Resources:








developed a 2014/15 workforce plan in consultation with the business and aligned to
projected revenue and expenditure for the 2014–15 financial year.
shifted focus with the start of Program Evolve in July 2013 to retention and employee
engagement initiatives. This is reflected by a turnover of 5.5 per cent compared to average
IT industry turnover figure of 15.5 per cent.
commenced the Resource Initiative 2014 in May 2014 to reduce the CenITex workforce by
60 FTE. A workplace change proposal was issued and following consultative processes,
implementation of the initiative commenced in June 2014.
launched in August 2013 a new online performance planning and development system.
ran two CenITex Management Development Programs in the 2013/14 financial year for
managers and team leaders with people management responsibility.
continuation of the Women in CenITex Network program throughout the year.
launched a six-month Mind Body Life Wellbeing Program, addressing topics such as
healthy eating, exercise and mental health.

6.6.2 Finance Services
The Finance Services function manages:






budgeting and financial aspects of the business plan
financial control
project portfolio reporting
management accounting
accommodation.

Highlights and achievements
During the year, Finance Services:
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refined cost control and cash management measures, which saw CenITex further reduce
its deficit and meet most areas of its 2013–14 budget.
continued to improve liquidity and working capital through reducing aged debtors from 8 per
cent to 7.5 per cent, and further matured the end-to-end process for invoicing, resulting in
more effective cash management.
successfully managed all regulatory and legislative compliance audits and all internal
control reviews, demonstrating strong controls.
continued to improve the accuracy of the fixed assets register with cyclical count of
hardware assets.
improved revenue forecasting as a result of last year’s process review of annual costing,
pricing and earlier engagement of customers.
improved the enterprise budgeting process by introducing better enterprise business
planning processes and timeframes.
introduced a revised format for monthly management accounts to improve decision making.
reduced the monthly financial and management reporting cycle resulting in improved Board
and Executive reporting.
improved project finance reporting to better align to customer needs and collaborative
decision making within the enterprise.
introduced quarterly forecasting to help CenITex better manage and control its cost
recovery.
enhanced demand forecasting by increased engagement with stakeholders, resulting in
greater transparency.
completed an internal restack to enable a more effective use of space and delivered
CenITex’s accommodation strategic plan for the next 18 months.
provided team resources and support to Program Evolve to minimise program costs.
completed cross-skill training for the Finance team to improve the depth of skills and
reduce the risk of functional single point of failure.
successfully applied for two private rulings by the Australian Taxation Office to recover
money previously classified as goods and services tax (GST) receipts.

6.6.3 Chief Information Office (CIO)
The CIO has responsibility for:







business applications
information and records management
data warehousing and business intelligence
information security
billing for customer subscription and consumption services
CenITex’s Business Improvement Program.

Highlights and achievements
During the year, the CIO:





established the Project Activity Timesheet (PAT) system as a service throughout CenITex
to ensure a consistent approach to PAT support.
continued deployment of the FileNet records management system for use by all CenITex
staff. Working with individual business units, staff training and staged transfer of file
structures into FileNet is 95 per cent complete.
achieved machinery of government change objectives, announced in March 2013, by
undertaking people data changes in Remedy service desk tool to ensure customer calls
were directed to the right areas and that billing requirements were met by 1 July 2013.
assumed responsibility for the billing of customer subscription, consumption services and
service delivery services; and increased the ability for future revenue recovery through
process improvement and by improving the quality of data delivered to clients.
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streamlined data collection and validation for desktops device count which resulted in 207
devices being back-billed.
annual write-offs in consumption services fell by $1.1 million from 30.85 per cent to 4.15
per cent after a gap analysis and process improvements.
significantly improved Human Resources (HR) reporting capability and robustness by
replacing the manual data update process with an automatic data feed, which removed 10
hours per week of labour time.
provided reporting capability for project management by integrating various data sources
including financial general ledger, purchase order, accounts payable, PAT timesheets, PAT
project and HR.
improved the performance and reliability of the Enterprise Reporting environment through
infrastructure hardware and software upgrades and server configuration fine-tuning; and
increased the number of users from 20 to 97.
undertook a technical security assessment (penetration test) to provide visibility of high-risk
external vulnerabilities including ICT infrastructure which allows the technical support
teams to promptly initiate remediation actions and mitigate high risks identified.
prepared security risk management plans and system security plans for CenITex
applications to identify security risks and proposed treatment plan with application owners.
implemented a security awareness campaign aimed at all CenITex staff on how to identify
and respond to sophisticated security threats.

6.6.4 Procurement Services
Specifically, its role is to:







facilitate quote and tender processes
conduct evaluations and selections
facilitate procurement approval records and variations
support contracting arrangements
be the primary procurer of all CenITex’s material needs
ensure compliance with the Victorian Government Purchasing Board’s (VGPB) policies and
guidelines.

Highlights and achievements
During the year, Procurement Services:









increased strategic capability uplift by refreshing category savings plans for data
centre/telecom and software categories and completing a savings plan for the hardware
category.
produced category plans that identified savings opportunities through contract aggregation
or product substitution and economic benefits were realised and captured through internal
reporting mechanisms.
completed the capability uplift required to transition to new VGPB supply policies.
supported, via the strategic supplier team, the Whole of Victoria Government (WoVG)
extension of the Microsoft enterprise licence agreements and the IBM enterprise licence
agreement.
continued to review the quality and probity of CenITex procurement by conducting regular
performance audits of procurement transactions.
continued to introduce business practices and management controls aimed at decreasing
the volume of non-compliant transactions.
led the introduction of the CenITex Strategic Procurement Group, a fundamental milestone
in CenITex achieving certification of WoVG procurement reform.
completed 710 procurement transactions, resulting in the initiation of 742 purchase orders
valued at a total of $92 million.
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7 Our People
7.1 Our Workforce
Comparative workforce data (i) (ii)
Table 1: Full-time equivalents (FTE) and contractor staffing trends from 2009 to 2014
Full time equivalents (FTE) staffing trends from 2009 to 2014
Jun-14

Jun-13

Jun-12

Jun-11

Jun-10

Jun-09

531.92(FTE)*

553.42(FTE)*

585.69(FTE)*

494.51(FTE)*

348.2(FTE)*

157.8(FTE)*

9 (contractors)

15 (contractors)

81 (contractors)

251 (contractors)

175
(contractors)

181
(contractors)

*This profile excludes contractors
Table 2: Summary of employment levels in June 2013 and June 2014
Fixed-term
& Casual

Ongoing employees
Year

Total
(Headcount)

Full time
(Headcount)

Part time
(Headcount)

FTE

FTE

Jun-14

449

435

14

444.89

87.03

Jun-13

465

451

14

460.67

92.75
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Table 3: Details of employment levels in June 2013 and June 2014
Jun-14

Data distribution

Fixed-term
& Casual

Ongoing

Number
(Headcount)

Jun-13

FTE

Number
(Headcount)

FTE

Fixed-term
& Casual

Ongoing

FTE

FTE

Gender
Female

104.00

99.89

16.03

106.00

101.67

15.55

Male

345.00

345.00

71.00

359.00

359.00

77.20

Total

449.00

444.89

87.03

465.00

460.67

92.75

4.00

4.00

9.80

7.00

7.00

9.60

25-34

89.00

88.60

34.00

114.00

113.40

43.12

35-44

172.00

169.74

23.63

177.00

174.94

20.43

45-54

116.00

114.85

13.00

114.00

112.63

11.60

55-64

65.00

64.70

5.60

50.00

49.70

8.00

3.00

3.00

1.00

3.00

3.00

0.00

449.00

444.89

87.03

465.00

460.67

92.75

4.00

4.00

0.00

5.00

5.00

0.00

Age
Under 25

Over 64
Total

Classification
Executive
STS

23.00

22.80

2.00

24.00

23.80

2.60

Grade 6

136.00

136.00

16.00

143.00

142.20

17.80

Grade 5

144.00

143.60

12.00

149.00

148.80

15.00

Grade 4

80.00

79.50

5.00

85.00

84.90

7.00

Grade 3

60.00

57.39

48.63

58.00

54.97

49.75

Grade 2

1.00

1.00

2.80

1.00

1.00

0.00

Grade 1

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.60

Legal Officer

1.00

0.60

0.60

0.00

0.00

0.00

Casual

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

449.00

444.89

87.03

465.00

460.67

92.75

Total

Notes:
(i) All figures reflect employment levels (active employees) during the last full pay period of June 2014.
(ii) Excluded are employees on leave without pay, including secondment, for the whole of the last pay period in June
2014 (3); external contractors/consultants (9); any temporary staff employed through employment agencies; and
Directors of the Board (4) as defined in the Public Administration Act 2004.
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7.2 Employment and Conduct Principles
Organisational and staff development
During the year CenITex rolled out management and leadership development programs,
continuing the focus on improving management skill and providing programs to build
behavioural skills in line with our values.
CenITex also offered work experience opportunities for secondary school students.
Employee relations
CenITex is committed to providing a workplace that encourages open and honest working
relationships at all levels in the organisation. CenITex has a dedicated employee relations team
that provides support and advice to employees and their managers in resolving workplace
issues.
Workplace determination
All non-executive employees are employed under the Victorian Public Service (VPS) Workplace
Determination 2012.
Code of conduct
CenITex adheres to the VPS code of conduct, which applies to all employees and contractors.
The code of conduct is issued to all employees on commencement with CenITex and is
reissued to all employees and contractors in August each year.
Merit and equity
CenITex maintains the following programs and policies to ensure that our workplace remains
free from discrimination:







Bullying and Harassment Policy;
Grievance Handling Policy;
Inappropriate Behaviour Policy, Managing Diversity;
Employee Assistance Program (provides staff with professional and confidential
counselling on work-related or personal problems that affect their work);
a set of values underpinned by the VPS code of conduct to help staff understand the
behavioural standards required of CenITex and the public service; and
staff induction training.
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7.3 Occupational Health and Safety
CenITex is committed to occupational health and safety (OH&S) and aims to ensure that all
staff remains safe and healthy at work.
Measure

KPI

2013-14

Incidents

Number of incidents

10

Rate per 100 FTE

1.8

Number of standard claims (i) (ii)

3

Rate per 100 FTE

0.56

Number and incidence of lost time claims (i)

1

Rate per 100 FTE

0.18

Number and incidence of claims exceeding 13 weeks (i)

0

Rate per 100 FTE

0

Fatalities

Fatality claims

0

Claim costs

Average cost per standard claim (i) (ii)

$10,471.74

Estimate of outstanding claim costs (i) (ii)

$28,162

Return to work

Percentage of claims with RTW plan < 30days

No claims required a RTW plan <
30 days

Management
commitment

Evidence of policy statement and objectives

Policy statement on Intranet

Regular reporting to senior management

Monthly OHS report submitted to
senior management

Presence of signed OHS plans; and

Not developed

Evidence of OHS criteria in purchasing guidelines

Not developed

Claims

Consultation and
participation

Risk
management

Evidence of agreed structure of designated workgroups
Yes
(DWGs), health and safety representatives (HSRs) and issue
resolution procedures (IRPs)

Compliance with agreed structure on DWGs, HSRs and
issue resolution procedures

Yes

Percentage of annual internal safety inspections conducted.

55%

Percentage of issues identified, actioned arising from:


hazard reports

67%



annual internal safety inspections

33%



HSR provisional improvement notices

0%



WorkSafe notices

0%

33

Training

Number of managers and staff that have received OHS
training:


induction/annual

409



management training

21

Percentage of HSRs training (not a legislative requirement):

(i)
(ii)



acceptance of role

All HSRs offered training upon
commencement in role. 62%
completed initial training



refresher training

One of three eligible HSRs
undertook non-compulsory
refresher training

Source – CGU Insurance
Includes two claims where liability was denied by the CenITex insurer.
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8 Outlook
8.1 Background
The Victorian Government ICT Strategy 2013-14 marked a significant shift in the delivery of ICT
services to government departments, many of whom have relied on CenITex as their internal
provider of these services for the past six years.
Program Evolve was established to enable CenITex to outsource its current range of services.
The Program had three streams of work:




Market Engagement - procurement activities to engage the appropriate ICT infrastructure
provider(s).
Capability Uplift - to design a new target operating model and strengthen commercial and
service integration abilities.
Change Management - to support CenITex and customer departments in adopting the new
model while lowering operation risk in transition.

As at April 2014, Program Evolve had successfully completed the Expression of Interest and
Collaborative Dialogue phases of the procurement process, prepared the Request for Proposal
(RFP) and draft contract for review, and developed a draft Target State Operating Model.
To enable a clear separation between CenITex's current responsibilities for ongoing service
delivery and the focus on outsourcing these services, Program Evolve will move
organisationally from under the CenITex Board to the Department of State Development,
Business and Industry (DSDBI) as of 1 July 2014. The Victoria Government’s Chief Technology
Advocate and DSDBI will be accountable for governing Program Evolve, establishing new
outsourced contracts for CenITex services, and forming a new Whole Of Victorian Government
operating model and capability to manage the outsourced contracts.
The Victorian Government, in May 2014, announced an allocation in the Victorian Budget 201415 of $6 million to DSDBI to finalise the RFP process. This process is the next stage and it is
expected that CenITex will start transition in 2015.
The CenITex goal is to successfully transition CenITex services to the private sector on behalf
of its customers.

8.2 The Future
CenITex business planning has been developed under the expectation that once contracts are
in place, a new operating model established and all transfer and transition activities completed,
then CenITex as an entity will be closed. The exact timing of this would depend on responses to
the RFP process. While this transition occurs, CenITex will continue to deliver current services
to our customers, as follows:
Workplace Services

Hosting Services

Professional Services








Application hosting





Storage and backup

Customer funded projects,
including



Restore and disaster
recovery

- project management



Desktop services
File and print services
Email and diary services
Personal productivity
applications
Internet access services



Database and application
management
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- solution design and build

8.3 Challenges and Priorities
CenITex stakeholders have an expectation that the majority of its services will be transitioned to
the private sector and remaining functions transferred to DSDBI via machinery of government
change. Transitioning out of the business of ICT infrastructure service provision while
maintaining service delivery and ensuring financial obligations are met will make for a complex
and dynamic operating environment with a unique set of challenges which include:






continuing to deliver ICT infrastructure services essential to our customers while CenITex
goes through substantial change
retaining key talent and maintaining employee productivity and morale while they face an
uncertain future
ensuring appropriate knowledge and specialist expertise is established to manage the
outsourcing of CenITex
delivering the Government change program in an environment of continuing fiscal restraint
maintaining the momentum to minimise impact on CenITex’s financial stability prior to
cessation as an entity.

8.4 Our Focus
Consistent with Government ICT strategy and CenITex goals, and ensuring financial solvency
during the transition of CenITex, our focus will be leveraged across four key areas:





Maintaining stability of current services for our customers
Ensuring financial solvency
Working collaboratively to support transition
Supporting our people through the change.

This will be done by:
Maintaining stability of current
services for our customers






Maintaining our disciplined approach to service delivery
Maximising stability by minimising change
Continuing to address high risk priorities with a reduced focus
on lower priority risks
Maximising and maintaining flexibility of key third part
arrangements

Ensuring financial solvency





Preserving the existing customer base and revenue
Focusing on essential activity and expenditure
Continuing to work our assets harder - utilising excess capacity
and adopting a fix on fail approach for asset management

Working collaboratively to
support transition





Implementing effective governance arrangements for transition
Working with customers and stakeholders as they transition
Supporting DSDBI and vendors with RFP, due diligence,
transition and transfer

Support our people through the
change



Keeping people regularly informed about the process, their
options and the timeframes
Providing a range of programs and resources to equip staff to
deal with change
Identifying opportunities for career transitioning, cross-skilling
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Summary of Financial Results
2014
$'000
Services provided to other Government entities
Total income from transactions
Total expenses from transactions

2013
$'000

2012
$'000

150,516

146,217

157,357

150,969

146,602

157,679

(151,242) (153,103) (194,830)

Net results from transactions before depreciation & amortisation
Net result from transactions
Net result for the period

22,023

17,350

(273)

(6,501)

(16,254)
(37,151)

(5)

(6,995)

(37,497)

Net cash flow from operating and investing activities

10,075

(6,480)

(51,308)

Total assets

98,188

98,347

114,157

Total liabilities

40,071

39,891

48,706








CenITex met its budget for the financial year with a turnaround of about $7m on the
previous year.
Provision of services to customers

$ 150.52

million

Less expenses to deliver the service

$ 144.44

million

Net result from service delivery

$6.073

million

Less expenses to implement change

($ 6.078)

million

Net result from transactions

($0.005)

million

CenITex improved its EBITDA by 26.9 per cent against the previous year by recovering all
revenue while maintaining tight cost controls, negotiating better procurement outcomes and
benefiting from cost saving achieved as a result of the past year’s program of works.
CenITex increased revenue despite a reduction in its customer base of more than 2700
desktops (due to past year’s Sustainable Government Initiative) through tighter billing
processes and passing on Consumer Price Index (CPI) related costs.
CenITex proactively managed its labour costs, realising the benefits of the prior year’s
labour rationalisation program, only replacing essential workforce positions when they
became vacant and encouraging staff to take annual leave.
CenITex continued to consolidate and rationalise vendor contracts thus driving more
efficient pricing. These procurement measures are deliverable as a result of critical mass
afforded through consolidation of departments and agencies under the Efficient Technology
Services (ETS) program. In particular:
 increasing strategic capability uplift by refreshing category savings plans for data
centre/telecom and software categories has translated to cost savings.
 during the year two key Whole of Victorian Government software contracts were
successfully renegotiated by CenITex in conjunction with the Department of State
Development and Business Innovation resulting in better outcomes for government. The
previous year’s implementation of a software licencing compliance tool to enable
37









effective management of licence usage was largely responsible for this successful
outcome.
The benefits of the ETS program and asset refresh initiatives have delivered financial gains
with cost savings achieved in hardware maintenance and electricity costs through
continued server virtualisation and retirement of old equipment.
Departments and agencies which migrated to the ETS Windows 7 solution assisted
government in avoiding additional costs associated with extended Windows XP support. It
is anticipated that the remaining departments and agencies will migrate over the coming
year to avoid further cost increases in 2015.
CenITex continues to maintain liquidity through tight cash management control and
stronger collaboration in finance and client engagement functions.
CenITex invested $6.07m for operational change in relation to Program Evolve. Program
Evolve, established to enable CenITex to outsource its current range of services,
successfully completed the Expression of Interest and Collaborative Dialogue phases of the
procurement process, prepared the Request for Proposal (RFP) and draft contract for
review, and developed a draft Target State Operating Model.
CenITex invested $13.5m in asset refresh, funding projects which delivered:
 consolidation, refresh and virtualisation of the Oracle Solaris Environment to mitigate
risk of service availability and performance
 a network switch refresh to reduce service risk
 a multiple server refresh for departments
 continued storage backup consolidation for departments
 replacement of data centre core switches to uplift capacity and rationalise underlying
architecture
 commencement of domain controller uplifts to reduce service risks
 replacement of remote site infrastructure to mitigate service risk
 server virtualization and decommissioning of the Veritas cluster and migration to
CenITex target state infrastructure to reduce business and operational costs to affected
customers
 a secondary data centre core switch capacity uplift to improve service performance
 migration of customers to the Bluecoat standard for web content filtering
 completion of identity management infrastructure, simplifying directory architecture and
significantly reducing costs through removal of 82 servers, whilst uplifting capabilities to
the government identity provisioning service (GIPS) and web access.
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Comprehensive operating statement
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

Income from transactions
Services provided to other government entities
Interest

Note

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

2(a)
2(b)

150,516
453

146,217
385

150,969

146,602

62,728
47,347
22,296
18,871
151,242
(273)

64,631
50,760
23,851
13,861
153,103
(6,501)

299
(31)
268
(5)

(594)
100
(494)
(6,995)

(5)

(6,995)

Total income from transactions
Expenses from transactions
Employee benefits
ICT expenditure
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Total expenses from transactions
Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
Other economic flows included in net result
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of PPE assets
Net gain/(loss) from revaluation of long service leave liability
Total other economic flows included in net result
Net Result
Comprehensive result

3(a)
3(b)
3(c)
3(d)

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Balance sheet
as at 30 June 2014
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

13,383
8,408
21,791

3,362
9,144
12,506

5
6
7

14,058
37,030
25,309
76,397
98,188

12,397
56,940
16,504
85,841
98,347

8
10
9

12,354
11,529
16,188
40,071
58,117

13,220
10,558
16,113
39,891
58,456

(64,803)
122,920
58,117

(64,798)
123,254
58,456

Note
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Total financial assets

4

Non-Financial Assets
Prepayments
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total non-financial assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Borrowings
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Accumulated loss
Contribution by Owners
Total equity
Commitments for expenditure
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

13
14

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014

Accumulated
loss
$'000
(57,803)

Contributions
by Owners
$'000
123,254

Net result for the year
Administrative restructure - net assets transferred
Balance at 30 June 2013

(6,995)
(64,798)

123,254

Net result for the year
Administrative restructure - net assets transferred
Balance at 30 June 2014

(5)

Balance at 1 July 2012

42

(64,803)

(334)
122,920

Total
$'000
65,451
(6,995)
58,456
(5)
(334)
58,117

Cash flow statement
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

164,264
453
448
165,165

170,382
385
170,767

(84,014)
(59,496)
(11)
(143,521)
21,644

(96,999)
(58,161)
(6,706)
(6)
(161,872)
8,895

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for non-financial assets
Proceeds from sale of non-financial assets
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities

(11,582)
13
(11,569)

(15,423)
48
(15,375)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loan from Government
Repayment of finance leases
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

(54)
(54)

6,500
(36)
6,464

10,021
3,362
13,383

(16)
3,378
3,362

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Receipts from other government entities
Interest received
GST
Total Receipts
Payments
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
GST
Interest and other costs of finance paid
Total Payments
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

16

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Non-cash transactions are disclosed in Note 16.
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Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2014

Note 1. Summary of accounting policies
These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for CenITex for the
period ended 30 June 2014. The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about CenITex’s stewardship
of resources entrusted to it.
(a) Statement of compliance
The financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with
the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), which includes the
Australian accounting standards issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), interpretations and other
mandatory professional requirements.
The financial report also complies with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister for
Finance, and relevant Standing Direction (SD) authorised by the Minister for Finance.
(b) Basis of preparation
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional
judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner that ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other
events are reported.
The accounting policies applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 and the
comparative information presented for the year ended 30 June 2013 are set out below.
The financial report has been prepared on a historical cost convention except for plant and equipment where fair value
is applied. Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, where it is applicable, assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:




Level 1 – Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 – The lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable;
Level 3 – The lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

(c) Scope and presentation of financial statements
As a result of the state-wide policy to improve consistency in public sector reporting, CenITex has prepared its complete
set of financial statements to align with the Accounting Standard AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General
Government Sector Financial Reporting presentation format used in the Financial Report for the State and the general
government sector.
Comprehensive operating statement
CenITex’s comprehensive operating statement comprises two components, being ‘net result from transactions’ and
‘other economic flows included in net result’. The sum of the two components represents the net result. This
classification is consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed under Accounting Standard
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
Income and expenses in the Comprehensive Operating Statement are classified according to whether they arise from
‘transactions’ or ‘other economic flows’.
‘Transactions’ are those economic flows that are considered to arise as a result of policy decisions, usually interactions
between two entities by mutual agreement. Transactions also include flows within an entity, such as depreciation where
the owner is simultaneously acting as the owner of the depreciating asset and as the consumer of the service provided
by the asset. Transactions can be in kind (e.g. assets provided/given free of charge or for nominal consideration) or
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where the final consideration is cash.
‘Other economic flows included in net result’ are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result
from transactions. It includes:



gains and losses from disposals; and
gains and losses from revaluation of long service leave liability

The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AAS.
Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order, with assets aggregated into financial assets and non-financial
assets. Current and non-current assets and liabilities (non-current being those assets or liabilities expected to be
recovered or settled more than 12 months after the reporting period) are disclosed in the notes, where relevant.
Statement of changes in equity
The Statement of Changes in Equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner equity opening balance at
the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately
changes due to amounts recognised in the ‘comprehensive result’ and amounts recognised ‘in other comprehensive
income – other movements in equity’ related to transactions with the owner in its capacity as owner.
Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether they arise from operating activities, investing activities, or financing
activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash comprises cash on hand, cash at bank and deposits at call, and
highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity that are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial statements (including the notes) have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless
otherwise stated.
(d) Changes in accounting policies
Subsequent to the 2012-13 reporting period, the following new and revised Standards have been adopted in the current
period with their financial impact detailed as below.
AASB 13 Fair value measurement
AASB 13 establishes a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements. AASB 13 does not change when
CenITex is required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under Australian
Accounting Standards when fair value is required or permitted. CenITex has considered the specific requirements
relating to highest and best use, valuation premise, and principal (or most advantageous) markets. The methods,
assumptions, processes and procedures for determining fair value were revisited and adjusted where applicable.
CenITex has reviewed the fair value principles as well as its current valuation methodologies in assessing the fair value,
and the assessment has not materially changed the fair values recognised.
AASB 13 requires specific disclosures about fair value measurements and disclosures of fair values, CenITex has
considered and applied these requirements where they are applicable.
The disclosure requirements of AASB 13 apply prospectively and need not be applied in comparative information before
first application. Consequently, the 2012-13 comparatives of these disclosures have not been provided.
AASB 119 Employee benefits
In 2013-14, CenITex has applied AASB 119 Employee benefits (September 2011, as amended) and the related
consequential amendments for the first time.
The revised AASB 119 changes the accounting for defined benefit plans, termination benefits and definition of shortterm employee benefits.
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As the current accounting policy is for the Department of Treasury and Finance to recognise and disclose the State’s
defined benefit liabilities in its financial statements, changes in defined benefit obligation and plan assets will have
limited impact on CenITex.
The short-term employee benefits were previously expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the related service, however, short-term employee benefits are now
defined as benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related service
CenITex has reassessed the changes in classification as determined in accordance with AASB 119 and has determined
that the changes have not materially altered its measurement of the annual leave provision.
(e) Reporting entity
The financial statements cover CenITex as an individual reporting entity. CenITex is a State Body established on 16
July 2008 by Order in Council under section 14 of the State Owned Enterprise Act 1992 (the Act) and declared a reorganising body on 24 April 2012 by Order in Council under section 7(1) of the Act.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Objectives and funding
CenITex’s mission is to provide information and communication technology (ICT) workplace and hosting services for the
whole of Victorian Government in an industry competitive, integrated and reliable manner, delivering efficient and
excellent customer service and value. CenITex is predominantly funded by customer departments and agencies for the
provision of services. The fees charged for these services are based on a cost recovery model.
Services
Information about CenITex’s income and expenses is set out in Note 2 and Note 3.
(f) Income from transactions
Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the income
can be reliably measured.
Services provided to other government entities
CenITex provides services to government departments and agencies. Revenue is brought to account when services
have been provided or when a usage or service charge has been made. Customer payments of accounts which at
reporting date were billed and paid in advance are classified as unearned revenue under current liabilities.
Interest
Interest includes interest received on deposits. Interest income is recognised as revenue when earned.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
(g) Expenses from transactions
Expenses from transactions are recognised as they are incurred, and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
Employee benefits
See Note 1(i) regarding employee benefit provisions.
Employee benefits expenses include all costs related to employment, including wages and salaries, leave entitlements,
redundancy payments and superannuation contributions. They are recognised when incurred, except for contributions in
respect of defined benefit plans. These expenses also include payments to contractors.
Superannuation
Defined benefit plans
The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans
represents the contributions made by CenITex to the superannuation plan with regard to the current services of current
CenITex staff. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan.
The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) in their Annual Financial Statements disclose on behalf of the State as
the sponsoring employer, the net defined benefit cost related to the members of these plans as an administered liability.
See DTF’s Annual Financial Statements for more detailed disclosures in relation to these plans.
ICT expenditure
ICT expenditure includes software licences and maintenance, hardware maintenance, telecommunication expenses and
outsourced ICT expenses. They are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation
Where assets have separate identifiable components that have distinct useful lives, a separate depreciation rate is
determined for each component.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost (net of their residual values) over their
estimated useful lives, starting from the time at which the asset is held ready for use. The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each Balance Sheet date.
Unless otherwise stated, the depreciation periods used for current and prior year are listed below:
Building Leasehold improvements

5 to 10 years

Computer equipment

3 to 4 years

Plant and equipment - Facilities

5 to 10 years

Plant and equipment - Network

5 years

Plant and equipment - Servers

5 years

Plant and equipment - Storage

5 years

Plant and equipment - Office machines & equipment

5 years

Motor vehicles under finance lease

3 years

Intangible assets

5 years
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Interest expense
Interest expense is recognised in the period in which it is incurred.
Impairment of assets
Except for financial assets (refer Note 1(h)), intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (and intangible assets not yet
available for use) and all other assets are tested annually for indications of impairment.
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their
possible recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is writtenoff by a charge to the Comprehensive Operating Statement, except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to
an asset revaluation surplus amount applicable to that class of asset.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will
be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount for most assets is
measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. The recoverable amount for
assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred by CenITex in its normal
operations. These items are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred or payable.
(h) Assets
Cash and deposits
Cash and deposits comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Receivables
Receivables consist predominantly of debtors in relation to goods and services, accrued revenue and GST input tax
credits recoverable.
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method, at
amortised cost less any accumulated impairment.
A provision for doubtful receivables is made when there is objective evidence that the debts will not be collected. Bad
debts are written-off when identified.
Prepayments
Prepayments include software licences and maintenance, other ICT expenditure and accommodation expenses that are
paid in advance. They are recognised in the period in which they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets are initially measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.
A fair value assessment of non-current assets was undertaken during the year and it is deemed that depreciated cost
generally represents a reasonable approximation of fair value.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.
50

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2014
Purchased intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are
capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to CenITex.
When the recognition criteria in Accounting Standard AASB 138 Intangible Assets are met, internally generated
intangible assets are recognised and measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an intangible
project) is recognised only if all of the following are demonstrated:
(a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
(b) an intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
(c) the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
(d) the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
(e) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and
(f) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
(i) Liabilities
Payables
Payables consist of:


contractual payables, such as accounts payable and unearned income. Accounts payable represent liabilities for
goods and services provided to CenITex before the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when
CenITex becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of purchase of those goods and services;



statutory payables, such as GST and fringe benefits tax payables.

Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost (see
Note 15). Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as
financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise
from a contract.
Borrowings
Interest bearing liabilities are recorded initially at fair value, less directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest bearing liabilities are measured at amortised cost with any difference between
the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised using the effective interest rate method in the
comprehensive result over the period of the interest bearing liability.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when CenITex has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recognised from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if recovery is virtually certain and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
(i) Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as ‘current
liabilities’.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave are
measured at:



undiscounted value – component that CenITex expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
present value – component that CenITex does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

(ii) Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability even when CenITex does not expect to settle the liability within
12 months because it does not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an
employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:



undiscounted value – component that CenITex expects to wholly settle within 12 months
Present value – component that CenITex does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is
measured at present value.
Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction,
except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as
an other economic flow.
(iii) Employee benefits on-costs
Employee benefits on-costs (payroll tax, workers compensation, superannuation, annual leave and LSL accrued
while on leave taken in service) are recognised and included with annual leave and LSL employee benefits.
(iv)Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts a voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. CenITex recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed either to terminating the employment of current employees according to a
detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after Balance Sheet date are
discounted to present value.
Leases
A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are classified at their
inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance
infrastructure leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership from
the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
CenITex as lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to either the fair value of the leased plant and
equipment or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payment, each determined at the inception of the lease.
The leased asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments are allocated between the principal component of the lease liability and the interest expenses
calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease, and are charged directly to the Comprehensive Operating
Statement. Contingent rentals associated with finance leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive
Operating Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset is not
recognised in the balance sheet.
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net
consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of
payments. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
(j) Equity
Contributions by owners
Additions to net assets that have been designated as contributions by owners are recognised as contributed capital.
Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions have also been designated as contributions by
owners.
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by
owners.
(k) Events after reporting date
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions result
from an agreement between CenITex and other parties, the transactions are recognised only when the agreement is
irrevocable at or before balance date. Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for
events that occur after the reporting date and before the date on which the statements are authorised for issue where
those events provide information about conditions that existed at the reporting date. Note disclosure is made about
events between the balance date and the date on which the statements are authorised for issue where the events relate
to conditions that arose after the reporting date and which may have a material impact on the results of subsequent
years.
(l) Commitments
Commitments include those operating, capital and other outsourcing commitments arising from non-cancellable
contractual or statutory sources and are disclosed at their nominal value and inclusive of the GST.
(m) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note
and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST.
(n) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of CenITex is the Australian dollar, which has also been identified as the presentation currency
of CenITex.
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Note 1. Summary of accounting policies (continued)
(o) Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In the latter case, GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance
Sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing
activities that were recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authority, are presented as an operating cash flow.
(p) Australian Accounting Standards (AASs) issued that are not yet effective
Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2014 reporting period. CenITex is
assessing the impact of AASs that are issued but not yet effective, hence it has not adopted these standards early.
(q) Financial instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of CenITex’s activities, certain financial assets and
financial liabilities arise under statutory obligation rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do
not met the definition of financial instruments in an AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation. For example,
statutory receivables arising from taxes do not meet the definition of financial instruments as they do not arise under
contract.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial
liabilities that meet the definition of financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.
Categories of non-derivative financial instruments
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an
active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus and directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial measurement, receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.
Loans and receivables category includes, trade receivables and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are
measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being
recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method (refer
to Note 15).
Financial instruments liabilities measured at amortised cost include all of CenITex’s contractual payables, loan from
Government and interest-bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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Note 2. Income from transactions
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(a) Services provided to other Government Entities:
Work place support (1)
Hosting(1)

112,774

Projects
Victorian Government Electronic Messaging System (VGEMS)
Total revenue from services provided to other Government Entities

109,631

24,798
12,656
288
150,516

24,542
11,896
148
146,217

453

385

453
453

385
385

(b) Interest
Interest from financial assets not at fair value through P&L:
- Interest on bank deposits
Total interest revenue from financial assets not at fair value through P/L
Total interest revenue
(1)

During the year, revenue associated with certain workplace and hosting services was reclassified.
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Note 3. Expenses from transactions

(a) Employee benefits
Post employment benefits
- Defined contribution superannuation plans
- Defined benefit superannuation expense
Termination benefits
Salaries, wages, leave entitlements, contractor payments
Total employee benefits

11
11

(b) ICT Expenditure
Software licences and maintenance
Hardware maintenance
Telecommunications
Outsourced ICT
Total ICT Expenditure
(c) Depreciation
Depreciation of non-current assets
Depreciation of non-current intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortisation

6
7

(d) Other operating expenses
Occupancy
Professional services, travel, stationery
Interest expense - finance lease costs
Total other operating expenses
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2014
$’000

2013
$’000

4,526
260
1,349
56,593
62,728

4,273
275
962
59,121
64,631

22,704
7,127
15,341
2,175
47,347

21,323
7,916
16,930
4,591
50,760

14,713
7,583
22,296

17,899
5,952
23,851

12,959
5,901
11
18,871

11,427
2,428
6
13,861
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Note 4. Receivables
2014
$’000
Current receivables
Contractual
Trade receivables
Provision for doubtful contractual receivables (See also Note 4(a))

2013
$’000

6,637

4,165

Other receivables

(355)
1,398

(268)
4,102

Statutory
GST input tax credit recoverable
Total current receivables
Total receivables

728
8,408
8,408

1,145
9,144
9,144

(a) Movement in the provision for doubtful contractual receivables

Balance at beginning of the year
Increase of the provision in the year
Balance at end of the year

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

268
87
355

271
(3)
268

(b) Ageing analysis of contractual receivables
See Note 15(d) for the ageing of contractual receivables.
(c) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual receivables
See Note15 (d) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from contractual receivables.

Note 5. Prepayments

Current other assets
Prepayments - Software licences and maintenance, and other ICT expenditure paid in
advance
Accommodation expenditure paid in advance
Total other assets
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2014
$’000

2013
$’000

13,704
354
14,058

12,057
340
12,397
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Note 6. Property, plant and equipment
Non-Current assets

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Buildings - leasehold improvements:
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

2,601
(2,207)
394

2,601
(1,793)
808

Plant and equipment - Computer equipment
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

1,536
(1,447)
89

6,637
(5,692)
945

Plant and equipment - Facilities
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

6,978
(5,566)
1,412

4,997
(3,321)
1,676

Plant and equipment - Network
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

60,370
(49,718)
10,652

58,950
(44,118)
14,832

Plant and equipment - Servers
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

56,942
(49,544)
7,398

50,710
(40,790)
9,920

Plant and equipment - Storage
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

46,217
(38,743)
7,474

40,959
(30,666)
10,293

Plant and equipment - Office Machines and Equipment
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

46
(35)
11

48
(29)
19

Motor vehicles under finance lease
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Written down value

287
(98)
189

177
(63)
114

9,411
9,411

18,333
18,333

37,030

56,940

Work in progress
At cost
Written down value
Net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment

59

Notes to the financial statements
30 June 2014

Note 6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Movements in carrying amounts
Buildings
leasehold
improvements

Work in
Progress

Plant and
equipment
(2), (3b)

(2), (3a)
Level 3

Motor
vehicles
under
finance
lease

Total

$’000

$’000

Level 3

Computer
Equipment Facilities Network
$’000
$’000
$’000

$’000

Office
Machines &
Servers Storage Equipment
$’000
$’000
$’000

2014
808

Opening balance
Administrative restructure
- net assets transferred

18,333

945

-

-

Additions

-

Disposals

-

Transfers
Depreciation expense

1,676

14,832

9,920

10,293

19

114

(334)

-

-

-

-

-

7,724

28

198

2,525

2,007

1,102

-

(9)

-

(46)

(77)

(71)

56,940

-

(334)

-

148

13,732

-

(18)

(221)

-

(16,646)

17

5

(1,042)

(220)

(486)

(1)

(1) (18,374)

(414)

-

(558)

(467)

(5,617)

(4,232)

(3,364)

(7)

(54) (14,713)

394

9,411

89

1,412

10,652

7,398

7,474

11

189

Buildings
leasehold
improvements

Work in
Progress

Closing balance

Plant and
equipment
(2), (3b)

(2), (3a)
Level 3

37,030 (1)

Motor
vehicles
under
finance
lease

Total

$’000

$’000

151

65,773

Level 3

Computer
Equipment Facilities Network
$’000
$’000
$’000

$’000

Office
Machines &
Servers Storage Equipment
$’000
$’000
$’000

2013
Opening balance
Administrative restructure
- net assets transferred

1,919

17,439

1,961

1,756

19,955

12,352

10,229

11

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Additions

91

9,362

123

435

2,954

2,995

4,092

16

77

20,145

Disposals

-

-

(2)

-

(40)

(4)

-

-

(75)

(121)

Transfers
Depreciation expense
Closing balance

(1) During

(160)

(8,468)

(172)

(3)

(1,138)

(925)

(92)

-

- (10,958)

(1,042)

-

(965)

(512)

(6,899)

(4,498)

(3,936)

(8)

(39) (17,899)

808

18,333

945

1,676

14,832

9,920

10,293

19

114

56,940 (1)

the year asset adjustments were re-classified.

(2)

Classified in accordance with the fair value measurement hierarchy as at reporting date. See note 1(b).

(3)

Description of unobservable assets to level 3 valuation.
(a) Building leasehold improvements are valued at depreciated replacement cost where the weighted average
cost per square metre is $343. The useful life of building leasehold improvements is disclosed in note 1(g).
(b) Plant and equipment is valued at depreciated replacement cost where the weighted average cost per asset
is $16,103 and the cost per unit is between $0 to $1,082,767. The useful life of plant and equipment is disclosed
in note 1(g).
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Note 6. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Aggregate depreciation recognised as an expense during the year;
Buildings leasehold improvements
Plant and equipment - Computer equipment
Plant and equipment - Facilities
Plant and equipment - Network
Plant and equipment - Servers
Plant and equipment - Storage
Plant and equipment - Office machines and equipment
Motor vehicles under finance lease
Total depreciation expense
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2014
$’000

2013
$’000

414
558
467
5,617
4,232
3,364
7
54
14,713

1,042
965
512
6,899
4,498
3,936
8
39
17,899
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Note 7. Intangible assets
Capitalised development

Non-Current assets

2014
$’000

2013
$'000

27,357
16,388
43,745

20,846
7,396
(885)
27,357

(10,853)
(7,583)

(5,255)
(5,952)

Closing balance

(18,436)

354
(10,853)

Net book value at the end of the financial year

25,309

16,504

Gross carrying amount
Opening balance
Additions - from work in progress
Retirements
Closing balance
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening balance
Depreciation expense
Retirement of intangibles
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Note 8. Payables

Current payables
Contractual
Supplies and services
Other Current Payables
Unearned Revenue
Other payables
Statutory
GST and FBT payable
Total payables

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

9,008

12,506

2,807
525

324
376

14
12,354

14
13,220

(a) Maturity analysis of contractual payables
See Note 15(e) for the maturity analysis of contractual payables.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual payables
See Note 15(f) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables.

Note 9. Borrowings
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

71
71

42
42

Non-current borrowings
Finance lease liabilities (1)
Loan from Government (2)
Total non-current borrowings

117
16,000
16,117

71
16,000
16,071

Total borrowings

16,188

16,113

Current borrowings
Finance lease liabilities (1)
Total current borrowings

(1)

Secured by the assets leased. Finance leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the
lessor in the event of default.
(2)

It is an unsecured loan which bears no interest. The term of a loan is agreed with the Treasurer.

(a) Maturity analysis of interest bearing liabilities
See Note15 (e) for the maturity analysis of interest bearing liabilities.
(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from interest bearing liabilities
See Note 15(f) for the nature and extent of risks arising from interest bearing liabilities.
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Note 10. Provisions
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

3,574
3,964
7,538

3,384
3,785
7,169

Provision for other employee entitlements

543
603
1,146
-

542
606
1,148
54

Total current provisions

8,684

8,371

2,470
375
2,845
11,529

1,886
301
2,187
10,558

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

4,169
3,369
-

4,020
3,149
54

Conditional long service leave entitlements
Total employee benefits

2,470
10,008

1,886
9,109

Current on-costs
Non-current on-costs
Total on-costs
Total employee benefits and related on-costs

1,146
375
1,521
11,529

1,148
301
1,449
10,558

Current
Employee benefits (1)
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs:
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months

Non-current
Employee benefits
Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
Total non-current provisions
Total provisions
(a) Employee benefits and related on-costs

Current employee benefits
Annual leave entitlements
Unconditional long service leave entitlements
Provision for other employee entitlements

(1)

The prior year annual leave provision was restated to reflect the timing of leave settlement.
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Note 11. Superannuation
CenITex employees are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and CenITex contributes to defined benefit as well
as contribution plans. The defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
CenITex does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plans because the entity has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance recognises and discloses the State’s defined
benefit liabilities in its financial statements.
However, superannuation contributions for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits in CenITex’s
Comprehensive Operating Statement.
Details of the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by CenITex are as follows.
The basis for contributions is determined by the various schemes.
Employees of CenITex employed under the Victorian Public Sector Award are entitled to benefits from the Government
Employees Superannuation Fund in the event of retirement, disability or death. This fund provides defined lump-sum
benefits based on years of service and final average salary.

Fund

Contribution
for the year

Defined benefit plans:
State Employees Retirement Benefits Scheme (SERBS)

2014
$'000

Contribution
outstanding
at year end
2014
$'000

260

-

2,751
1,775
4,526
4,786

-

Contribution
for the year
2013
$'000

Contribution
outstanding
at year end
2013
$'000

275

-

2,766
1,507
4,273
4,548

-

Defined contribution plans:
Victorian Superannuation Fund – VicSuper scheme
Other
Total defined contributions
Total
Fund

Defined benefit plans:
State Employees Retirement Benefits Scheme (SERBS)
Defined contribution plans:
Victorian Superannuation Fund – VicSuper scheme
Other
Total defined contributions
Total

The above amounts were measured as at 30 June, or in the case of employer contributions they relate to the year
ended 30 June.
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Note 12. Leases
Finance leases - CenITex as lessee
Finance leases relate to motor vehicles with lease terms of three years. CenITex has options to purchase the motor
vehicles for a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease agreements.

Minimum
future lease
payments

2014
Finance lease liabilities payable
- Not longer than one year
- Longer than one year and not longer than five years
Minimum future lease payments

(1)

Less future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

$’000

Present
value of
minimum
future lease
payments
$’000

80

71

123
203

117
188

15
188

188

Included in the financial statements as;
Current interest bearing liabilities (refer to Note 9)
Non-current interest bearing liabilities (refer to Note 9)

71
117
188
Minimum
future lease
payments

$’000

Present
value of
minimum
future lease
payments
$’000

Minimum future lease payments (1)

47
76
123

42
71
113

Less future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

10
113

113

2013
Finance lease liabilities payable
- Not longer than one year
- Longer than one year and not longer than five years

Included in the financial statements as:
Current interest bearing liabilities (refer to Note 9)
Non-current interest bearing liabilities (refer to Note 9)

(1)

42
71
113

Minimum finance lease payments include the aggregate of all lease payments and any guaranteed residual.
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Note 12. Leases (continued)
Operating leases - CenITex as lessee
Leasing arrangements
Operating leases relate to buildings with lease terms of three to five years, with an option to extend for a further three
years. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that CenITex exercises its option to
renew. CenITex does not have an option to purchase the leased asset at the expiry of the lease period.
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

10,503
33,884
6,962
51,349

10,128
39,407
11,941
61,476

Operating leases payable
Not longer than one year
Longer than one year and not longer than five years
Longer than five years
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Note 13. Commitments for expenditure
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

138
138

1,080
1,080

The following commitments have not been recognised as liabilities in the financial
statements:
(a) Capital expenditure commitments
Plant and equipment
Payable:
Not longer than one year
Total capital expenditure commitments

(b) Lease commitments
Finance lease liabilities and non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in Note 12.

Note 14. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
CenITex had no contingent assets or liabilities at 30 June 2014. (2013: NIL).
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Note 15. Financial instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
CenITex’s principal financial instruments comprise:
- cash assets
- receivables (excluding statutory receivables)
- payables (excluding statutory payables)
- interest bearing liabilities
- finance lease payables.

Details of significant accounting policies and methods adopted in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised are disclosed throughout Note 1 to these financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to manage CenITex’s financial risks prudently within the
government’s policy parameters.
CenITex’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. CenITex manages these financial
risks in accordance with its Financial Risk Management Policy.
CenITex uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed. Primary responsibility
for the identification and oversight of financial risks rests with CenITex’s Risk and Audit Committee.
(b) Categorisation of financial instruments
2014

Contractual Financial Assets Contractual Financial Liabilities
Loans and Receivables
at amortised cost

Contractual financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Total financial assets
Contractual financial liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Total financial liabilities
2013

Total

13,383
8,035
21,418

-

13,383
8,035
21,418

-

12,340
188
12,528

12,340
188
12,528

Contractual Financial Assets Contractual Financial Liabilities
Loans and Receivables
at amortised cost

Total

Contractual financial assets
Cash and deposits
Receivables
Total financial assets
Contractual financial liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Total financial liabilities

3,362
8,267
11,629

-

3,362
8,267
11,629

-

13,206
113
13,319

13,206
113
13,319

The amount of financial assets disclosed here excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST input tax credit recoverable), and
the provision for doubtful debts.
The amount of financial liabilities disclosed here excludes statutory payables (i.e. taxes payable).
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(c) Net holding gain /(loss) on financial instruments by category
2014
$'000

2013
$'000

453
453

385
385

(11)
442

(6)
379

Contractual financial assets
Cash and deposits
Contractual financial liabilities
At amortised cost
Net holding gain/(loss)

The net holding gains and losses disclosed above are determined as follows:
-

For cash and deposits, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest revenue and adding or
subtracting foreign exchange gains or losses arising from revaluation of the financial assets minus any
impairment recognised in the net result.

-

For financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, the net gain or loss is calculated by taking the interest
expense and adding or subtracting foreign exchange gains or losses arising from the revaluation of financial
liabilities at amortised cost.
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Note 15. Financial instruments (continued)
(d) Credit risk exposures
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of CenITex, which comprise cash and deposits, and trade and other
receivables. CenITex's exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of counter parties on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to CenITex. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular
basis.
Credit risk associated with CenITex financial assets is minimal because the debtors are government departments.
Provision for impairment of contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that CenITex will
not be able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, and
changes in credit ratings.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial report, net of any allowances for losses, represents
CenITex’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.
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Note 15. Financial instruments (continued)
Table 15.1: Credit risk exposure and ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired

Credit risk exposure

2014
Cash
Receivables (i)
Other

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate Carrying
amount
($ ‘000)
13,383
2.5%
6,637
1,398
21,418

2013
Cash
Receivables (i)
Other

2.8%

Fixed Variable
interest interest
rate
rate
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
13,383
13,383

Not past
Non- due and
interest
not Less than
bearing impaired 1 Month
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
13,383
6,637
4,982
427
1,398
1,398
8,035
19,763
427

1-3
months
($ ‘000)
367
367

Impaired
3 months
Financial
_
Assets
1 year 1-5 years
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
861
861
-

3,362
4,165
4,102

-

3,362
-

4,165
4,102

3,362
1,992
4,102

400
-

1,148
-

620
-

5
-

-

11,629

-

3,362

8,267

9,456

400

1,148

620

5

-

(i)

Ageing analysis of receivables excludes doubtful debts and statutory receivables for GST input tax credits recoverable. These amounts are
not contractual, and are therefore outside the scope of this disclosure.

(e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when CenITex is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. CenITex operates
under the Victorian Government’s Fair Payments policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and, in the
event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days of the date of resolution.
Maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities.
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Table 15.2: Liquidity risk exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities
Liquidity risk exposure
Weighted
average
effective
interest Nominal
rate amount (i)
2014
Payables:
Payable to
Government
agencies
Other payables (1)
Interest bearing
liabilities:
Finance lease
liabilities
Loan from
Government

6.6%

2013
Payables:
Payable to
Government
agencies
Other payables (1)
Interest bearing
liabilities:
Finance lease
liabilities
Loan from
Government
(1)

($ ‘000)

Fixed
interest
rate
($ ‘000)

Variable
interest
rate
($ ‘000)

2,807
9,533

-

-

2,807
9,533

203

203

-

-

16,000
28,543

203

-

324

-

-

12,882

6.8%

Maturity dates

-

Noninterest Less than
bearing 1 month
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)

-

1-3
months
($ ‘000)

3 months
_
1 year 1-5 years > 5 years
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)
($ ‘000)

2,807
9,533

-

-

-

-

38

8

34

123

16,000
28,340

12,378

8

34

16,000
16,123

-

324

324

-

-

-

-

12,882

12,882

-

-

-

-

-

123

123

-

-

21

5

21

76

-

16,000
29,329

123

-

16,000
29,206

13,227

5

21

16,000
16,076

-

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities
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Note 15. Financial instruments (continued)
(f) Market risk
CenITex exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to foreign
currency risk and other price risks. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are
disclosed in the paragraphs below.
Foreign currency risk
CenITex is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases from overseas
for which the counterparty invoices are in foreign currency.
Based on past and current assessment of economic outlook, it is deemed unnecessary for CenITex to enter into
any hedging arrangements to manage the risk.
Interest rate risk
Exposure to interest rate risk relates solely to cash balances held in deposits at variable interest rates. For
financial liabilities, CenITex’s exposure to interest rate risk relates solely to motor vehicle leases. CenITex’s
interest bearing liabilities are managed by VicFleet at interest rates fixed at the inception of the lease.
CenITex’s exposure to interest rate risk is set out in tables 15.1 and 15.2.
Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account future expectations, economic forecasts, and management’s knowledge and experience of
the financial markets, CenITex believes the following movements are possible over the next 12 months:
A parallel shift of +1.00% and -1.00% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 2.5% (2013:2.8%)
Table 15.3 discloses the impact on net operating result and equity for each category of financial instrument held
by CenITex at year-end, as presented to key management personnel, if the above movements were to occur.

74

Note 15. Financial instruments (continued)
Table 15.3: Market risk exposure

2014
Interest rate risk
-1.00%
(100 b asis points)

Financial assets:
Cash and deposits

1.00%
(100 b asis points)

Carrying
amount
($‘000)

Profit
($‘000)

Equity
($‘000)

Profit
($‘000)

Equity
($‘000)

13,383

(134)

(134)

134

134

Receivables (1)
Financial liab ilities:

7,680

-

-

-

-

Payables (1)

9,533

-

-

-

-

188
16,000

(134)

(134)

134

134

Interest bearing liabilities (2)
Loan from Government (3)
Total increase/ (decrease)

2013
Interest rate risk
-1.00%
(100 b asis points)

Financial assets:
Cash and deposits
Receivables (1)
Financial liab ilities:
Payables (1)
(2)

Interest bearing liabilities
Loan from Government (3)

1.00%
(100 b asis points)

Carrying
amount
($‘000)

Profit
($‘000)

Equity
($‘000)

Profit
($‘000)

Equity
($‘000)

3,362

(34)

(34)

34

34

7,999

-

-

-

-

12,882

-

-

-

-

113
16,000

-

-

-

-

(34)

(34)

34

34

Total increase/ (decrease)
(1)

The carrying amount is denominated in Australian Dollars and is non-interest bearing. This item is not subject
to the identified risk sensitivities.

(2)

Interest bearing liabilities relate solely to finance lease liabilities associated with motor vehicles. Each contract
has interest fixed at the inception of the lease. This item is not subject to identified risk sensitivities.

(3)

Loan from Government bears no interest. This item is not subject to the identified risk sensitivities.

(g) Fair value
CenITex considers the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial report
to be a good approximation of their fair values and the expectation that they will be paid in full.
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Note 16. Cash flow information
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

(5)

(6,995)

186
22,296
87

594
23,851
(3)

3,791
822
(6,558)
1,025
21,644

7,706
173
(16,776)
345
8,895

Reconciliation of net result for the period to net cash flows from operating activities
Net result for the period
Non-cash movements
Net (gain)/loss on sale or disposal of non-current assets
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
Increase/(decrease) in doubtful debts
Movements in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in current receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in current payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

Note 17. Ex gratia payments
No ex-gratia payments were made during the year. (2013: NIL)

Note 18. Related party transactions
Grant Hehir was the chairman of the CenITex Board up to 8 October 2013 and secretary of the Department of
Treasury and Finance (DTF) and was a director of the Treasury Corporation Victoria (TCV) Board. CenITex
provides services to DTF on normal commercial terms and uses TCV term deposit facilities.
Grantly Mailes was appointed as Chairman of CenITex on 9 October 2013 with a further three month appointment
that commenced on 9 January 2014 and concluded on 8 April 2014. He is also Deputy Secretary, Innovation and
Technology, Department of State Development, Business and Innovation (DSDBI). CenITex provides services to
DSDBI on normal commercial terms.
Randall Shaw was appointed as a Director of CenITex Board on 17 December 2013 and subsequently appointed
as Chairman effective 9 April 2014. He is also a Director of the Victorian Government Purchasing Board,
managed by Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF). CenITex provides services to DTF. Randall Straw is
also engaged on contract work with DSDBI, CenITex provides services to DSDBI on normal commercial terms.
There were no other transactions between CenITex and responsible persons and their related parties during the
financial year.
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Note 19. Responsible persons
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management
Act 1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.
Persons who held positions of ministers and accountable officers responsible for CenITex during the financial
year from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 were:






The Assistant Treasurer, Minister for Technology and the Minister Responsible for the Aviation Industry, the
Hon. Gordon Rich-Phillips MLC, from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014
Chairman, Mr Grant Hehir, from 1 July 2013 to 8 October 2013
Chairman, Mr Grantly Mailes, from 9 October 2013 to 8 April 2014
Chairman, Mr Randall Straw, from 9 April 2014 to 30 June 2014
Chief Executive, Mr Michael Vanderheide, from 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014

Position
Board member
Board member
Board member
Board member

Income Band
$0 - 10,000
$10,001 - 20,000
$20,001 - 30,000
$30,001 - 40,000
$40,001 - 50,000
Total as at 30 June
Total amount

Name
Randall Straw
Johanna Barker
Richard Tait
Conrad Harvey

Period
17 December 2013 to 30 June 2014
8 April 2014 to 30 June 2014
17 December 2013 to 30 June 2014
17 December 2013 to 30 June 2014

Total Remuneration 2014
3
3
6
$49,425

Total Remuneration 2013
1
1
$0

The former Chairmen of CenITex, Mr Grantly Mailes and Mr Grant Hehir, did not receive any remuneration in their
position as Chairman.
Remuneration
Remuneration received or receivable by accountable officers in connection with the management of CenITex
during the reporting period was:


Accountable officer: 1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014, $330,000 to $339,999. (2013: $310,000 to $319,000)

Amounts relating to Ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.
Other transactions
Other related transactions and loans requiring disclosure under the Directions of the Minister for Finance have
been considered and there are no matters to report.
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Note 20. Remuneration of executives and payments to other
personnel with significant management responsibilities
(a) Remuneration of executives
The numbers of executive officers, other than ministers and the accountable officers, and their total remuneration
during the reporting period are shown in the table below in their relevant income bands. Base remuneration is
exclusive of bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits. The
total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the
reporting period.
(a) Remuneration of executives
Base
remuneration

Total
remuneration

Base
remuneration

Total
remuneration

2014
No.

2014
No.

2013
No.

2013
No.

1
1
1
1
4.0
3.8

1
1
1
1
4.0
3.8

1
1
1
1
2
1
7.0
3.6

2
1
1
2
1
7.0
3.6

$888,065

$930,285

$759,455

$775,524

Income band
$10,000 - 19,999
$20,000 - 29,999
$40,000 - 49,999
$80,000 - 89,999
$150,000 – 159,999
$160,000 – 169,999
$180,000 – 189,999
$210,000 – 219,999
$250,000 – 259,999
$260,000 – 269,999
$270,000 – 279,999
Total number of executives
Total annualised employee equivalents (AEE) (1)
Total amount
(1)

Annualised employee equivalent is based on paid working hours of 38 ordinary hours per week over the 52
weeks for a reporting period.
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Note 20. Remuneration of executives and payments to other
personnel with significant management responsibilities (continued)
(b) Payments to other personnel with significant management responsibilities
There were no payments made to contractors of CenITex charged with significant management responsibilities.
(2013: NIL).
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Note 21. Remuneration of auditors
2014
$’000

2013
$’000

79
79

77
77

Victorian Auditor General’s Office
Audit of the financial report
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Note 22. Events occurring after the balance date
During the year CenITex commenced program Evolve to test the market to potentially outsource ICT services that
are presently in-sourced. Primarily this was in response to opportunities to access new services in potentially
more cost effective ways.
Responsibility for the next stage of this program has been transferred to DSDBI effective 1 July 2014 at the
direction of the Minister for Technology.
It is expected that over financial year 2014 -2015, DSDBI will continue with the testing of the market for CenITex
services with expectation that the majority of its services will be transitioned to the private sector with any
remaining functions transferred to DSDBI via machinery of government (MoG) change.
CenITex’s business plan has been developed under the expectation that once contracts are in place, a new
operating model established and all transfer and transition activities completed, then CenITex as an entity will be
closed. The exact timing of this is uncertain and would depend on responses to the Request for Proposal (RFP)
process. It is however anticipated over the next 18 to 24 months.
The organisation’s goal in the medium term is to successfully transition CenITex services to the private sector on
behalf of customers while maintaining the stability of services, ensuring financial solvency and supporting its
people through the transition process.
The Directors have taken steps to ensure the solvency of the organisation by significantly reducing labour costs
and incurring capital expenditure only on a needs basis to maintain service levels. Over the last 3 years, CenITex
has progressively improved its financial position. It has met its budget and exceeded cash forecasts at 30 June
2014 through prudent cost and cash management control. CenITex’s customers have also committed their
expenditure to the equivalent of CenITex’s budget revenue for financial year 2014 -2015 thus further
strengthening its financial position.
Considering the uncertainties described above with reference to timing, and the fact that CenITex has a
reasonable expectation that it has adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future, it
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing this financial report.
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Statutory Certification
We certify that the Financial Statements for CenITex for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been
prepared in accordance with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable
Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes to and forming part of the
financial statements, present fairly the financial transactions for the year ended 30 June 2014 and the
financial position of CenITex as at that date.
We are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial
statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 5 September 2014.

Randall Straw

Michael Vanderheide

Catherine Ho

Chairman
CenITex

Chief Executive
CenITex

Chief Financial Officer
CenITex

Melbourne
5 September 2014
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10 Other Disclosures
10.1 Disclosures
10.1.1 Implementation of the Victorian Industry Participation Policy
In October 2003, the Victorian Parliament passed the Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act
2003, which requires public bodies and departments to report on the implementation of the
Victorian Industry Participation Policy (VIPP). Departments and public bodies are required to
apply VIPP in all tenders over $3 million in metropolitan Melbourne and $1 million in regional
Victoria.
CenITex did not commence or complete any contracts for which a VIPP plan was required.

10.1.2 Consultancies
The definition of consultancies was updated, effective from 1 July 2013. Consequently,
disclosures on the 2013-14 consultancy expenditure cannot be compared with previous year
disclosures.
Details of consultancies (valued at $10,000 or greater)
During the financial year ended 30 June 2014 there were 14 consultancies where the total fee
payable to the consultants were $10,000 or greater. Details of the individual consultancies are
outlined below.

Consultant

Purpose of
consultancy

Start date

Total
approved
project fee
(excluding
GST)

Expenditure
2013-14
(excluding
GST)

Future
expenditure
(excluding
GST)

30 Jun 2015 $3,618,181.82 $3,100,000.00

Nil

End date

A T KEARNEY Program Evolve
Market Engagement
Lead Adviser

22 Jul 2013

DIMENSION
DATA
AUSTRALIA
PTY LTD

NetBackup design
and implementation
planning

12-Aug-13

25-Sep-13

$13,294.00

$13,294.00

Nil

FOI
SOLUTIONS

Provision of legal
advice in preparing
responses to FOI
requests

22-Dec-11

19-Sep-15

$127,727.27

$16,426.57

$22,911.19

HEWITT
ASSOCIATES
PTY LTD

Provision of market
remuneration
information and
support services

01-Apr-13

30-Jun-14

$13,181.82

$10,250.00

Nil

24-Apr-13

30-Jun-15

$54,545.45

$22,000.00

$21,380.45

Supply of
LANDELL
CORPORATIO Procurement Project
N PTY LTD
Advisory Services
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NEVEK PTY
LTD

Engagement of a
Pricing Commercial
Analyst

18-Feb-13

31-Oct-13

$91,840.00

$68,880.00

Nil

O'CONNOR
MARSDEN &
ASSOCIATES
PTY LTD

Provision of Probity
Practitioner Services
for Program Evolve

05-Aug-13

31-Dec-14

$118,124.55

$79,485.00

$38,639.55

RSM BIRD
CAMERON

Provision of
Procurement Probity
Audit Services

10-Oct-11

31-Dec-14

$89,927.27

$19,107.00

$29,501.00

PITCHER
PARTNERS

Provision of Audit
Services for
Procurement Reform

24-Feb-14

22-Mar-14

$13,181.82

$25,471.79

Nil

Details of consultancies under $10,000
During the financial year ended 30 June 2013 there were two consultancies engaged where
total fees paid was less than $10,000. Total expenditure was $11,620.82 (excl. GST).

10.1.3 Disclosure of major contracts
CenITex has disclosed, in accordance with the requirements of Government policy and
accompanying guidelines, all contracts greater than $10 million in value which it entered into
during the year ended 30 June 2014. Details of contracts that have been disclosed in the
Victorian Government contracts publishing system can be viewed on the internet at:
http://www.contracts.vic.gov.au
Contractual details have not been disclosed for those contracts for which disclosure is
exempted under the Freedom of Information Act 1982 and/or Government guidelines.

10.1.4 Freedom of information 1982
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 allows the public a right of access to documents held by
CenITex. For the 12 months ending 30 June 2014, CenITex did not receive any requests for
access under Freedom of Information. A previously existing application for review was finalised
during the past financial year.
Making a request
Access to documents may be obtained by written request to the Freedom of Information
Manager, as detailed in section 17 of the Freedom of Information Act 1982. In summary, the
requirements for making a request are that it should:




be in writing
identify as clearly as possible which document is being requested
be accompanied by the appropriate application fee (the fee may be waived in certain
circumstances).
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Requests for documents in the possession of the CenITex should be addressed to:
Freedom of Information Manager
CenITex
PO Box 2750
Melbourne VIC 3001
Requests can also be lodged online at http://www.foi.vic.gov.au.
Access charges may also apply once documents have been processed and a decision on
access is made; for example, photocopying and search and retrieval charges.
Further information regarding Freedom of Information can be found at http://www.foi.vic.gov.au.

10.1.5 Building and maintenance compliance
CenITex does not own nor control any government buildings. Consequently it is exempt from
notifying its compliance with the building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.

10.1.6 National Competition Policy
Competitive neutrality requires government businesses to ensure that, where services compete
(or potentially compete) with the private sector, any advantage arising solely from their
government ownership be removed if the services are not in the public interest. Government
businesses are required to cost and price these services as if they were privately owned and
thus fully cost reflective.
CenITex complies with the requirements of the National Competition Policy by establishing
prices for services that are fully cost reflective.

10.1.7 Compliance with Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001
Since the last financial year Victoria has implemented a new protected disclosure regime. The
new regime includes amendments to the Ombudsman Act 1973 and replacement of the
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 with the Protected Disclosure Act 2012.
The new Victorian integrity system comprises the following bodies:




Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC)
Victorian Inspectorate (oversees both the IBAC and the Victorian Ombudsman)
Accountability and Oversight Parliamentary Committee (has oversight of the Freedom of
Information Commissioner and the Victorian Ombudsman).

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 came into effect on 10 February 2013. The Act encourages
and assists people in making disclosures of improper conduct by public officers and public
bodies. The Act provides protection to people who make disclosures in accordance with the Act
and establishes a system for matters disclosed to be investigated and for rectifying action to be
taken.
CenITex does not tolerate improper conduct by employees, or the taking of reprisals against
those who come forward to disclose such conduct. The organisation is committed to ensuring
transparency and accountability in its administrative and management practices and supports
the making of disclosures that reveal corrupt conduct, conduct involving substantial
mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving a substantial risk to public health and
safety or the environment. CenITex will take all reasonable steps to protect people who make
such disclosures from any detrimental action in reprisal for making the disclosure. It will also
afford natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure to the extent that this is
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legally possible.
Reporting procedures
Disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by CenITex or its employees may be
made to:
The Protected Disclosure Officer
Ross Gilmour
Corporate Communications
CenITex
Phone: (03) 8688 1507
Disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by CenITex or its employees may
alternatively be made directly to the Ombudsman at:
Victorian Ombudsman
Level 9, 459 Collins Street (North Tower)
Melbourne VIC 3000
Telephone: (03) 9613 6222
Toll free: 1800 806 314
Email: ombudvic@ombudsman.vic.gov.au
Further information
Written guidelines outlining the system for reporting disclosures of improper conduct or
detrimental action by CenITex or its employees are available to employees on the CenITex
intranet and to others from the CenITex Protected Disclosures Officer.
Disclosures under the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 and the Protected Disclosure
Act 2012
The current procedures established by the public body under Part 6 are available upon request.
2013–14

2012–13

Number

Number

Public interest disclosures

0

0

Protected disclosures

0

0

The number of disclosures referred by the public body to the Ombudsman for determination
as to whether they are public interest disclosures

0

0

The number and types of disclosed matters referred to the public body by the Ombudsman
for investigation

0

0

The number and types of disclosures referred by the public body to the Ombudsman for
investigation

0

0

The number and types of investigations taken over from the public body by the Ombudsman

0

0

The number of requests made by a whistleblower to the Ombudsman to take over an
investigation by the public body

0

0

The number and types of disclosed matters that the public body has declined to investigate

0

0

The number and types of disclosed matters that were substantiated upon investigation and
the action taken on completion of the investigation

0

2 (a)

Any recommendations made by the Ombudsman that relate to the public body

0

13

The number and types of disclosures made to public bodies during the year
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a) The type of disclosed matters concerned CenITex’s procurement of services and personnel from two companies.
CenITex implemented all Ombudsman recommendations in relation to the substantiated disclosed matters.

10.1.8 Office-based environmental impacts
CenITex collects data for environmental impacts reporting. The third full year of data collection
is reported here. The data includes our office-based environmental impacts in three areas:
energy, paper and transport.

Environmental Reporting
2013-14

2012–13

Offices

Data
centres

Offices

Data
centres

Electricity consumption (mega
joules - MJ)

9,967,316

26,819,432

11,266,847

27,305,159

MJ per square metre (m2)

1083

14,220

1218

14,478

MJ per full-time employee ( FTE)

18,448

49,638

15,178

47,620

Paper consumption (reams)

2332

2523

Reams per FTE

4.32

4.40

Motor vehicle use (kilometres)

164,968*

113,999*

km per FTE

305

199

*FBT year to 31 March 2014.

Water and waste
CenITex pays indirectly for water consumption and waste disposal as part of the 80 Collins
Street lease, billed as a percentage of the whole of the property budget across 50 floors. This is
standard practice in leased buildings. Therefore, we do not keep data as we do not process
direct accounts from these suppliers.
Procurement
Where possible, CenITex buys equipment from whole of Victorian Government contracts and
state purchasing panels to take advantage of environmental requirements covered for all
departments in tenders and contracts.
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The contracts and panels we purchase from include:







intra-Government Secured Network (iGSN)
Servers and Storage Equipment contract
Multi-Function Device
Citrix WoVG contract
WoVG Data Centre contract
Microsoft Enterprise Agreement

When we go to market we include:



clauses in quotes and tender documents requiring tenderers to disclose environmental
practices
appropriate weighting of environmental considerations in quotes and tenders.

10.1.9 Additional information
For additional information contact:
Corporate Communications
CenITex
PO Box 2750
Melbourne VIC 3001
Australia
corporate.communications@cenitex.vic.gov.au

10.2 Disclosure Index
Legislation

Requirement

Reference

Ministerial Directions

Report of operations – FRD guidance
Charter and purpose
FRD 22E

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

3.1 & 4.1

FRD 22E

Objectives, functions, powers and duties

3.1 & 4.1

FRD 22E

Nature and range of services provided

6.1 – 6.5

Management and structure
FRD 22E

Organisational structure

4.4

Financial and other information
FRD 10

Disclosure index

10.2

FRD 12A

Disclosure of major contracts

10.1.3

FRD 15B

Executive officer disclosures

Financial Report note
20

FRD 22E,
SD 4.2(k)

Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against
objectives

6.1 – 6.5

FRD 22E

Employment and conduct principles

7.2

FRD 22E

Occupational health and safety policy

7.3

FRD 22E

Summary of the financial results for the year

Financial Report
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FRD 22E

Significant changes in financial position during the year

Financial Report

FRD 22E

Major changes or factors affecting performance

8.3

FRD 22E

Subsequent events

Financial Report note
22

FRD 22E

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

10.1.4

FRD 22E

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building
Act 1993

10.1.5

FRD 22E

Statement on National Competition Policy

10.1.6

FRD 22E

Application and operation of the Protected Disclosure 2012

10.1.7

FRD 22E

Details of consultancies over $10 000

10.1.2

FRD 22E

Details of consultancies under $10 000

10.1.2

FRD 22E

Statement of availability of other information

10.1.9

FRD 24C

Reporting of office-based environmental impacts

10.1.8

FRD 25B

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

10.1.1

FRD 29

Workforce Data disclosures

7.1

SD 4.5.5

Risk management compliance attestation

See below

SD 4.2(g)

Specific information requirements

See below

SD 4.2(j)

Sign-off requirements

Preamble

Financial Report
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

Financial Report

SD4.2(b)

Operating statement

Financial Report

SD4.2(b)

Balance sheet

Financial Report

SD4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

Financial Report

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other
authoritative pronouncements

Financial Report note 1

SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

Financial Report

SD4.2(d)

Rounding of amounts

Financial Report note
1(c)

SD4.2(c)

Accountable officer’s declaration

Financial Report

SD4.2(f)

Compliance with Model Financial Report

Financial Report

Other disclosures as required by FRDs in notes to the financial statements
FRD 11A

Disclosure of Ex-Gratia Expenses

FRD 21B

Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officers and other
Financial Report notes
Personnel (Contractors with Significant Management Responsibilities) 19 & 20
in the Financial Report

FRD 103D

Non-current Physical Assets

Financial Report notes
6&7

FRD 104

Foreign Currency

Financial Report note
15

Financial Report note
17
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FRD 106

Impairment of Assets

Financial Report note
1(h)

FRD 109

Intangible Assets

Financial Report note 7

FRD 110

Cash Flow Statements

Financial Report

FRD 112D

Defined Benefit Superannuation Obligations

Financial Report notes
1(g,h) & 11

FRD 114A

Financial Instruments – General Government Entities and Public Non Financial Report note
Financial Corporations
15

FRD 119A

Transfers through Contributed Capital

Financial Report

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982

10.1.4

Building Act 1983

10.1.5

Protected Disclosure Act 2001

10.1.7

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

10.1.1

Financial Management Act 1994

preamble

10.3 Our Websites
CenITex has an online presence in three website environments:
Website

Audience

Staff intranet

CenITex staff

insITe

CenITex staff and customers

Internet

General public, CenITex customers and staff
www.cenitex.vic.gov.au
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10.4 Glossary of Terms
CIO

Chief Information Office/r

Departments

Restructure of the Victorian Public Service, effective 1 July 2013, created the
following departments:















Department of Transport (DOT)
Department of Planning and Community Development (DPCD)
Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC)
Department of Primary Industries (DPI)
Department of Sustainability and Environment (DSE)
Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF)
Department of Business and Innovation (DBI)
Department of Justice (DOJ)
Department of Human Services (DHS)
Department of Health (DH)
Department of Environment and Primary Industries (DEPI)
Department of State Development, Business and Innovation (DSDBI)
Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure (DTPLI)

executive

In the Victorian Public Service, a person employed as a public service body head or
other executive under Part 3, Division 5 of the Public Administration Act 2004. The
definition of an executive officer does not include statutory officers unless they are
specifically declared to be employed under the executive employment provisions of
the Public Administration Act 2004.

FTE

Full-time equivalent. One FTE is the equivalent of one person working full-time for
one financial year. For example, two persons, each working 2.5 days per week (or
0.5 of standard hours) equals one FTE.

GIPS

Government Identity Provisioning Service

GSP

Government Shared Platform

ICT

Information and Communications Technology

MoG

Machinery of Government

Public Sector

All organisations (i.e. VPS departments and agencies, as well as public entities)
covered by the Public Administration Act 2004.

PAT

Project Activity Timesheet

Remedy

Tool for managing internal service desk calls

SAC

Stakeholder Advisory Committee

state agencies

Administrative unit of state government providing community and other services.
State agencies mentioned in this report:







Land Victoria (LV)
Land Management Authority (LMA)
Public Transport Victoria (PTV)
VicForests
Victorian Ombudsman (VO)

Victorian public
sector

All Victorian organisations (i.e. Victorian Public Service departments and agencies,
as well as public entities) covered by the Public Administration Act 2004.

VPS

Victorian Public Service (see also Victorian public sector)

WoVG

Whole of Victorian Government
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Risk Attestation Statement
I, Michael Vanderheide, certify that CenITex has risk management processes in place
consistent with the Australian/New Zealand International Risk Management Standard (or
designated equivalent), and that an internal control system is in place enabling the executive to
understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures.
The Audit and Risk Committee verifies this assurance and that the risk profile of CenITex has
been critically reviewed within the last 12 months.

Michael Vanderheide
Chief Executive
28 August 2014

Insurance Attestation Statement
I, Michael Vanderheide, certify that CenITex has complied with Ministerial Direction 4.5.5.1 –
Insurance, except for:
4.5.5.1 (b) Maintain a current register of all insurance and indemnities and make this available
to the VMIA on request. Indemnities include those provided by the Treasurer as well as
indemnities provided contractually.
CenITex has a register of insurance policies, and has, since 30 June 2014, provided a register
of indemnities to the Victorian Managed Insurance Authority (VMIA).

Michael Vanderheide
Chief Executive
28 August 2014
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